
 

 

 

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
 

 

NOVEMBER 9, 2020                          6:00 p.m. 
ZOOM MEETING 

 
   Times shown for agenda items are estimates only. 

 
 

6:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER 
  
6:01 p.m. WELCOME/ANNOUNCEMENTS  
  
6:02 p.m. SILENT MEDITATION 
  
6:03 p.m. 
 
 

PRESENTATION – City Administrator Julia Glanz 
• Lynching Memorial Task Force 

 
PROCLAMATIONS – City Administrator Julia Glanz 

• National Runaway Prevention Month 
• Municipal Government Works Month 

  
6:28 p.m. ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 
  
6:29 p.m. CONSENT AGENDA - City Clerk Kimberly Nichols  
 • October 19, 2020 Work Session Minutes 
 • October 19, 2020 Closed Session Minutes (separate email) 
 • October 26, 2020 Legislative Session Minutes 
 • Resolution No. 3072- approving the reappointment of Brenden Frederick to the 

Historic District Commission for the term ending October 2023 
 • Resolution No. 3073- approving the reappointment of Dr. Alexander Pope to the 

Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee for the term ending November 2023 
 • Resolution No. 3074- approving the appointment of Dominique Sessa to the Parks & 

Recreation Committee for the term ending November 2023 
  
6:34 p.m. AWARD OF BIDS – Procurement Director Jennifer Miller 
 • Department of Field Operations – Misc. Vehicles & Equipment 
  
6:39 p.m. RESOLUTIONS – City Administrator Julia Glanz 
 • Resolution No. 3075- to amend the bylaws of the Human Rights Advisory Committee 

to change the committee’s membership requirements and terms 
 • Resolution No. 3065- proposing the annexation to the City of Salisbury of certain area 

of land contiguous to and binding upon the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to 
be known as the “Hall Drive – Long Property  Annexation”  



 • Resolution No. 3066- to adopt an annexation plan for a certain area of land 
contiguous to and binding upon the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to be 
known as the “Hall Drive – Long Property Annexation” 

  
6:49 p.m. ORDINANCES - City Attorney Mark Tilghman 
 • Ordinance No. 2626- 2nd reading- to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with  

the Wicomico County Health Department for the purpose of accepting grant funds in               
the amount of $24,951.28, and to approve a budget amendment to the FY 2021 Grant 
Fund to appropriate these funds for the purchase of two (2) commercial grade 
washer/extractors and dryers 

 • Ordinance No. 2627- 2nd reading- authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Memorandum                  
of Understanding with the Wicomico County Health Department and approving a                   
budget amendment of the FY 2021 General Fund Budget to appropriate funds received 
from the Wicomico County Health Department in the amount of $7,500.00  

 • Ordinance No. 2628- 2nd reading- approving a budget amendment of the Grant Fund to 
appropriate funds to operate the Salisbury-Wicomico Firstcare Team (SWIFT) 

 • Ordinance No. 2629- 1st reading- to authorize the Mayor to sign the grant agreements, t  
accept two grants in the total sum of $155,565.60 from the Maryland Department of 
Transportation (MDOT) Maryland Bikeways Program for the design of the Rail Trail, 
Phase 1 and West College Avenue Bikeway Projects, and to approve an amendment of 
the FY21 Budget to allocate said funds for purposes of implementation 

 • Ordinance No. 2630- 1st reading- approving a budget amendment of the FY21 General 
Fund Budget to appropriate insurance proceeds received in FY21 as part of the             
payment for vehicle repair 

  
7:10 p.m. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
  
7:15 p.m. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
  
7:20 p.m. ADJOURNMENT 
  

 

Copies of the agenda items are available for review in the 
City Clerk’s Office, Room 305 – City/County Government 
Office Building, 410-548-3140 or on the City’s website 
www.salisbury.md. City Council Meetings are conducted                   
in Open Session unless otherwise indicated.  All or part of 
the Council’s meetings can be held in Closed Session                     
under the authority of the Maryland Open Meetings Law, 
Annotated Code of Maryland General Provisions Article                            
§ 3-305(b) by vote of the City Council.                                                                  

                                                                                                                            

                                                 NEXT COUNCIL MEETING – NOVEMBER 23, 2020 
     

• Ordinance No. 2629- 2nd reading- to authorize the Mayor to sign the grant agreements, to accept two grants in 
the total sum of $155,565.60 from the Maryland Department of Transportation (MDOT) Maryland Bikeways 
Program for the design of the Rail Trail, Phase 1 and West College Avenue Bikeway Projects, and to approve an 
amendment of the FY21 Budget to allocate said funds for purposes of implementation 

• Ordinance No. 2630- 2nd reading- approving a budget amendment of the FY21 General Fund Budget to 
appropriate insurance proceeds received in FY21 as part of the payment for vehicle repair 

 

 
 

http://www.salisbury.md/


Join Zoom Meeting  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5362772908  

Meeting ID: 536 277 2908  
One tap mobile  

+13017158592,,5362772908# US (Germantown)  
+13126266799,,5362772908# US (Chicago)  

+19292056099,,5362772908# US (New York) 
 
 
 
Posted 11/5/20 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5362772908


October 19, 2020 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
1 | P a g e  

 
 

CITY OF SALISBURY 1 
WORK SESSION (VIA ZOOM MEETING) 2 

OCTOBER 19, 2020 3 
 4 

Public Officials Present 5 
 6 

Council President John “Jack” R. Heath Council Vice President Muir Boda 
Councilwoman Angela M. Blake 
Councilwoman April Jackson 

Councilwoman Michele Gregory 
 
 

Public Officials Absent 7 
 8 

Mayor Jacob R. Day 9 
 10 

In Attendance 11 
 12 

City Administrator Julia Glanz, Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Department of 13 
Infrastructure & Development (DID) Director Amanda Pollack, Fire Chief John Tull, Finance 14 
Director Keith Cordrey, City Attorney Mark Tilghman, and City Clerk Kimberly Nichols. 15 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 16 
On October 19, 2020 the Salisbury City Council convened in a Work Session at 4:30 p.m. via 17 
Zoom. The following is a synopsis of the topics discussed:    18 
 19 
Faith Baptist Church Annexation Agreement amendment 
 
DID Director Amanda Pollack reported the City received a request from the First Baptist Church to 
modify their annexation agreement, dated December 18, 2006 and finalized in 2007, with terms not 
currently included in the City’s annexation agreements. The City had one similar request on the Hobbs 
Road annexation property recently where they sought to remove some of the more outdated terms of 
their annexation agreement. The request was pulled earlier in the Spring, but at that time, Council had 
approved moving forward with the amendment. Ms. Pollack said there were two assessment fees on a 
per unit basis for residential development not consistent with the City’s current agreements, as fees 
were now based on the size of the property and the financial impacts. The annexation agreement also 
included the concept development plan, which has now changed. The church wanted to market the 
property and wished to have a different concept included. The amendment was preliminary and DID 
had not begun negotiating before receiving Council’s feedback on negotiating a new agreement. Ms. 
Pollack requested permission from Council to proceed and return to Work Session at a later date.   
 
Pastor Robert Reinhert reported the property was under contract with a developer in 2007 but the 
development prospects dwindled. They were doing what they could to market the property and asked 
the Council to consider the conditions Ms. Pollack explained. Once there was a buyer for the property, 
the buyer would submit the concept plan.  
 
Council reached unanimous consensus to move forward with the annexation agreement amendment.  
 
Budget Amendment to accept a grant for $24,951 from the Wicomico County Health 20 
Department (WiCHD) 21 



October 19, 2020 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
2 | P a g e  

 
 

 22 
Fire Chief John Tull reported the WiCHD received a direct allocation of funds through the 23 
Federal Coronavirus Relief Fund designed to help support Emergency Medical Response 24 
expenses including emergency medical transportation related to COVID-19. The Fire 25 
Department requested to purchase commercial grade washer extractors and dryers for two of the 26 
City’s fire stations. The request was approved by the WiCHD at a total cost of $24,951.28.  27 
 28 
Council reached unanimous consensus (4-0) to advance the legislation. President Heath was 29 
experiencing technical difficulties and asked Mr. Boda to preside over the meeting. 30 
 31 
Budget Amendment to accept a grant for $7,500 from the Wicomico County Health 32 
Department to purchase emergency medical supplies and equipment for the Safe Station 33 
 34 
Chief Tull reported the budget amendment was a continuation of services provided by the Fire 35 
Department over the past year. The WiCHD received funding from Mid-Shore Behavior Health 36 
for a Safe Station program.  The Fire Department partnered with the Health Department and 37 
agreed to provide non-emergent medical checks to all individuals that entered the Safe Station, 38 
and would receive $2,500 on a quarterly basis over the next three quarters. The funds from the 39 
program would be used to purchase additional medical supplies and equipment. 40 
 41 
Council reached unanimous consensus (4-0) to advance the legislation to legislative session. 42 
President Heath was still disconnected and Mr. Boda continued to conduct the meeting. 43 
 44 
Budget Amendment to accept a grant for $4,600 from the Wicomico County Health 45 
Department to operate the Salisbury-Wicomico Firstcare Team (SWIFT Team) 46 
 47 
Chief Tull discussed the budget amendment for additional SWIFT funding. Over the past several 48 
years, the City received grant funding from the Maryland Community Health Resources 49 
Commission (CHRC) which was awarded to the County, and the City was a subrecipient of the 50 
funds  In FY2018, the CHRC awarded the WiCHD $90,000 and had previously sub-granted 51 
$81,920 to the City of Salisbury. The County had additional money previously earmarked for the 52 
City in the amount of $4,600. Chief Tull requested approval to accept the funds for SWIFT. 53 
 54 
Council reached unanimous consensus to advance the budget amendment to legislative agenda. 55 
 56 
New Development Incentive program 57 
 58 
Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow presented a PowerPoint on a tax incentive program 59 
called HORIZON (“Hotel or Residential Incentive Zone”). He discussed the City’s Enterprise 60 
Zone, RISE Zone, PILOTS (Payment in Lieu of Taxes), and TIFs (Tax Incremental Financing).  61 
He explained HORIZON was a tax credit program that would incentivize large scale hotel or 62 
multi-family residential development in the Central Business District and Riverfront 63 
Redevelopment District. There were seven (7) projects in the pipeline or development stage 64 
located within the proposed HORIZON district, including “The Ross” on Main Street, Salisbury 65 
Town Center, Marina Landing, Downtown Lofts, 500 Riverside, SBY Market Center, and Lot 66 
10. The projects would represent an increase in assessed value of $75 million and over 750 new 67 
people living in the downtown corridor.  68 



October 19, 2020 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
3 | P a g e  

 
 

 69 
Mr. Kitzrow explained the four (4) following reasons for creating a tax credit program that 70 
focused on residential, multi-family in Downtown: 71 
 72 

1. Due to an expected challenging recovery from the Pandemic, an influx of people residing 73 
downtown would have a significant positive impact on retail and restaurant businesses 74 
located downtown and help with short- and long-term economic recovery. 75 

2. The program would continue to support the Envision Salisbury Master Plan, adopted in 76 
2016, which was to promote Downtown as the epicenter for continued growth in the City. 77 

3. A strategic goal in the FY21 Budget was for a strong economy. HORIZON would 78 
incentivize business ownership, improve support for current business owners and 79 
prioritize quality-of-life for residents to make the City attractive to businesses and their 80 
employees. 81 

4. When infill construction is done into an existing community, it helps redevelopment to 82 
allow the density crucial to development. 83 

 84 
Mr. Kitzrow discussed reasons for the 25-year term and term summary and explained the 85 
average tax credit over the 25-year term would be a 56% credit.  86 
 87 
Ms. Jackson said she noticed most of the area was around the waterfront, and did not see 88 
Fitzwater Street in the area. She asked what would happen to displaced people in the 89 
neighborhood when development began. City Administrator Julia Glanz said it was drawn down 90 
the middle of the street with no houses, and there would be no displaced people. The tool would 91 
speed up development, and went hand in glove with the City’s Housing and Community 92 
Development efforts. A realtor would help with redeveloping some of the lots the City purchased 93 
in the Fitzwater neighborhood. 94 
 95 
Ms. Blake asked if it might be beneficial to give Habitat for Humanity (Habitat) a tax credit. The 96 
span of time from purchase of property to the time to sell it is typically a four (4) year period. 97 
The County was not open to providing a tax credit, and she was unaware whether the City did in 98 
the past. She stated two benefits of giving Habitat or Salisbury Neighborhood Housing Service 99 
(SNHS) tax credits for when they prepared a home for sale. One was that they could rehab and 100 
sell it quicker because funds for taxes could go back into rehabbing the property. Another benefit 101 
was that it incentivized homeownership, clean-up, and rehabbing some of the homes in the area 102 
around the big developments. Not only would it be more esthetically pleasing, but it could 103 
compliment residential and commercial simultaneously.  104 
 105 
Ms. Gregory shared Ms. Jackson’s concerns and concurred with Ms. Blake’s ideas. She asked 106 
how many of the homes on the other side of Fitzwater Street were homeowner occupied and how 107 
many were rentals. Mr. Kitzrow said there were 12 – 15 homeowner occupied homes in the Hill 108 
Street area out of 300 properties. Ms. Gregory was concerned that landlords would raise rents 109 
without actually improving the property. 110 
 111 
President Heath thought the project had very little impact on the Hill Street area homes. The City 112 
should work to raise the property values of the other homes, but that discussion had to be 113 
separate. Ms. Jackson supported redeveloping the area, but would not support it if she did not 114 
know what would happen to her constituents living there. Ms. Glanz reported the only two 115 



October 19, 2020 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
4 | P a g e  

 
 

properties on Fitzwater Street that would be impacted had already been approved by Council to 116 
be sold , which were Marina Landing and Lot 30. 117 
 118 
Finance Director Keith Cordrey reported the Finance Department could easily administrate the 119 
HORIZON program. The rates were very aggressive and it would reinforce the City’s objectives.  120 
 121 
President Heath asked if the Year 1 to 5 of the Term Summary was a 100% tax credit on the 122 
incremental tax, not the base tax, and Mr. Kitzrow said it was. President Heath said that then the 123 
base taxes would be collected as is so that there would be no loss of tax revenue on the City’s 124 
side until we got to the end, at which time we would then have the benefit of all the taxes coming 125 
on. Mr. Kitzrow concurred with President Heath. 126 
 127 
Four developers and builders provided the following comments: 128 
 129 

1. When seeking property Downtown to build “The Ross,” he wanted to create a landmark 130 
property and be in line with the Salisbury Master Plan. “The Ross” would house 300 131 
residents, have a public rooftop café, and employ 30 – 100 construction workers daily 132 
during its construction. In order for future development to take place, significant amounts 133 
of capital needed to be raised. The projects proposed on Lot 1, Lot 10, Lot 16, 500 134 
Riverside, and The Ross, and others, would cost millions of dollars. If looking at 135 
$100,000,000 in development, and with the best-case scenario banks lent 60% - 70% of 136 
that value, then $30 million in equity had to be attracted. The capital providers had no 137 
borders on where to invest and looked for the highest risk adjusted to return available in 138 
market. Salisbury and Wicomico County were competing against the other big markets in 139 
the nation, and many had those types of incentives involved already. 140 

2. In doing “The Ross,” he called upon over 350 financial institutions, family offices and 141 
private investors to look at projects in Salisbury. The most common response he received 142 
was the returns were not high enough. That was the reason why projects had extended 143 
timelines and some were cancelled. This needed addressing and HORIZON would help. 144 

3. A community restaurant owner liked the simplicity of the HORIZON program and the 145 
incentives it would bring to help Downtown boom. 146 

4. With the added challenges of COVID-19 in the City and nation, the HORIZON program 147 
was a critical incentive to attract the necessary capital to develop projects downtown. 148 

5. The developer for Lots 1 and 11 was happy to see Council working on these issues. The 149 
rates were low, and market value had returned. HORIZON would be a very attractive 150 
incentive to his company to provide market rate housing. It was an honor being part of a 151 
project conceived in the early 1960’s. HORIZON would make it a reality.  152 

6. The program was targeting exactly as it should on the long term. There were many tax 153 
incentive programs that end in ten (10) years and the beauty HORIZONS was that it 154 
passed the ten (10) year threshold. This was necessary in attracting the kind of capital to 155 
build these jobs. He endorsed any action taken on this program by the City Council.   156 

7. There was a legitimate concern about ensuring the projects worked well with local 157 
neighborhoods. The good thing was most of the projects were not near housing, with the 158 
exception of Fitzwater. The program would spur new development not just Downtown.  159 

8. Downtown needed foot traffic which would come from apartments. Building vertical 160 
would create the density needed to spur retail.  161 

 162 



October 19, 2020 Work Session Minutes 
Approved:  
5 | P a g e  

 
 

Council reached consensus to place a homeownership incentive discussion on an upcoming 163 
Work Session agenda and to move forward with the HORIZON program. Ms. Jackson did not 164 
wish to move forward with the HORIZON program until she had the answers to her questions. 165 
 166 
Motion to convene in Closed Session 167 
 168 
At 5:38 p.m. President Heath called for a motion to convene in Closed Session to consult with  169 
counsel to obtain legal advice on a legal matter and to consult with staff, consultants, or other 170 
individuals about pending or potential litigation in accordance with the Annotated Code of 171 
Maryland §3-305(b)(7)(8). 172 
 173 
Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous to enter into Closed 174 
Session. 175 
 176 
Reconvene in Open Session / Report to Public  177 
 178 
At 6:00 p.m., upon a motion and seconded by Mr. Boda and Ms. Gregory, respectively, and 179 
approved by unanimous vote in favor, the Closed Session adjourned. Council convened in Open 180 
Session whereby President Heath reported that while in Closed Session Council had received an 181 
update on litigation and discussed pending litigation. 182 
 183 
Adjournment 184 
 185 
With no further business to discuss, the Open Session immediately adjourned.  186 
 187 
____________________________________ 188 
City Clerk 189 
 190 
_____________________________________ 191 
Council President 192 



October 26, 2020 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  1 | P a g e  

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 1 
 2 
REGULAR MEETING (VIA ZOOM MEETING) OCTOBER 26, 2020 3 
 4 

PUBLIC OFFICIALS PRESENT 5 
 6 

President John “Jack” R. Heath     Council Vice-President Muir Boda     7 
Councilwoman Angela M. Blake    Councilwoman Michele Gregory 8 

 9 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS ABSENT 10 

 11 
Mayor Jacob R. Day 12 

Councilwoman April Jackson  13 
 14 

IN ATTENDANCE 15 
 16 
Deputy City Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Department of Infrastructure & Development Director 17 
Amanda Pollack, City Planner Anne Roane, Eastern Shore Crisis Response Services (ESCRS) 18 
Executive Director Tina Marie Brown, ESCRS Clinical Coordinator Allison Hunter Jacobs, 19 
ESCRS CIT Coordinator Brandy James, City Attorney Mark Tilghman, City Clerk Kimberly 20 
Nichols, members of the press and public. 21 
****************************************************************************** 22 
CITY INVOCATION – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 23 
  24 
The City Council met in regular session at 6:00 p.m. via a Zoom Meeting. Council President 25 
John R. Heath called the meeting to order and called for a moment of silent meditation.  26 
 27 
Eastern Shore Crisis Response Services (ESCRS) – presented by Executive Director Tina 28 
Marie Brown 29 
 30 
ESCRS Executive Director Tina Marie Brown provided a PowerPoint presentation on the 31 
services the organization provides. The following is a recap of the presentation: 32 
 33 
ESCRS serves eight (8) counties and is funded by state grants with no costs to consumers. The 34 
volunteer service operates 24 hours a day, 365 days per year. As a result of COVID-19, they 35 
offer a tele health response in addition to traditional response.  36 
 37 
Typical cases include individuals with chronic mental health issues, those experiencing severe 38 
depression and/or suicidal thoughts, substance abuse and psychotic issues, assisting law 39 
enforcement with emergencies, death notifications and support, critical incident debriefings, 40 
situational crisis, and well checks and transitional support. Tasks provided by the ESCRS 41 
include responding to the consumer in their setting, stabilizing the situation, completing a mental 42 
health assessment, referring and linking to other vital services, and providing follow-up. 43 
 44 
Wicomico County had 492 dispatches in FY20, and 23% of all new dispatches were for 45 
Wicomico. They had 36 referrals from Law Enforcement, and 2965 consumer follow-up calls. 46 



October 26, 2020 Legislative Session 
Approved: 
2 | P a g e  

Mobile Crisis’s average response time is 14 minutes, and they had an 80% diversion rate from 47 
hospital emergency. Ms. Brown also discussed how ESCRS partnered with law enforcement. 48 

49 
ADOPTION OF LEGISLATIVE AGENDA 50 

51 
Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous (4-0) to approve the 52 
legislative agenda. 53 

54 
CONSENT AGENDA – presented by City Clerk Kimberly Nichols 55 

56 
The Consent Agenda consisting of the following items was unanimously approved on a motion 57 
and seconded by Ms. Blake and Ms. Gregory, respectively: 58 

59 
• October 12, 2020 Legislative Session Minutes
• Resolution No. 3071- approving the appointment of Kevin Tyler Anderson to the Human

Rights Advisory Committee for term ending October 2024 
60 

AWARD OF BIDS – presented by Procurement Director Jennifer Miller 61 
62 

The Award of Bids, consisting of the following, was unanimously approved on a motion and 63 
seconded by Ms. Blake and Mr. Boda, respectively: 64 

65 
• ITB 21-102, Various Water Treatment Chemicals $781,000.00 est. 66 
• ITB 21-104, Rehabilitation of Park Wells 7B and 15A $136,986.00 67 

68 
PUBLIC HEARING – presented by City Attorney Mark Tilghman 69 

70 
• Ordinance No. 2619- 2nd reading- amending Section 17.212.030, to add warehouses or71 

storage facilities as a permitted use in shopping centers72 
73 

Mr. Boda moved and Ms. Blake seconded to approve Ordinance No. 2619 for second74 
reading.75 

76 
After Mr. Tilghman presented Ordinance No. 2619, President Heath announced the Public77 
Hearing was opened at 6:33 p.m., and as there were no requests to speak, the Public78 
Hearing was immediately closed.79 

80 
Ordinance No. 2619 for second reading was unanimously approved on a 4-0 vote.  President81 
Heath announced the text amendment would become effective on November 5, 2020.82 

83 
ORDINANCES –  presented by City Attorney Mark Tilghman 84 

85 
• Ordinance No. 2621- 2nd reading- accepting donated funds from members of the86 

community for various community betterment projects and amending the FY2021 Budget87 
to appropriate these donated funds for those projects88 

89 



October 26, 2020 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  3 | P a g e  

Ms. Blake moved, Mr. Boda seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 90 
Ordinance No. 2621 for second reading. 91 

 92 
•    Ordinance No. 2622- 2nd  reading- to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with 93 

the Federal Emergency Management Agency for the purpose of accepting grant funds in 94 
the amount of $109,028.69, and to approve a budget amendment to the FY 2020 Grant 95 
Fund to appropriate these funds for offsetting COVID-19 expenses 96 

 97 
 Mr. Boda moved and Ms. Gregory seconded to approve Ordinance No. 2622 for second 98 

reading.  99 
 100 
 Ms. Blake moved to amend Ordinance No. 2622 by striking $109,246 and inserting 101 

$109,028.69 on Line 43. Ms. Gregory seconded, and the amendment was unanimously 102 
approved.  103 

 104 
 Ordinance No. 2622 for second reading, as amended, was unanimously approved on a  105 

4-0 vote. 106 
 107 
•    Ordinance No. 2623- 2nd reading- to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with 108 

the Wicomico County Health Department for the purpose of accepting grant funds in the 109 
amount of $36,342.90, and to approve a budget amendment to the FY 2020 Grant Fund 110 
to appropriate these funds for offsetting COVID-19 expenses 111 

 112 
 Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 113 

Ordinance No. 2623 for second reading. 114 
 115 
•     Ordinance No. 2624- 2nd reading- to amend Chapter 8.11 – The Fire Prevention Code, 116 

Sections .020, .040, and .060 of the City of Salisbury Municipal Code by adding new 117 
permits that are required to be obtained from the Fire Marshal, removing the reference 118 
to the International Building Code, removing Housing and Community Development in 119 
8.11.040 and establishing a timeframe for submitting inspections in 8.11.060 with third-120 
party inspection requirements 121 

 122 
 Ms. Blake moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 123 

Ordinance No. 2624 for second reading. 124 
 125 
• Ordinance No. 2625- 2nd reading- to amend the Fee Schedule for FY2021 126 

 127 
Ms. Blake moved, Mr. Boda seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 128 
Ordinance No. 2625 for second reading. 129 
 130 

• Ordinance No. 2626- 1st reading- to authorize the Mayor to enter into a contract with  131 
the Wicomico County Health Department for the purpose of accepting grant funds in               132 



October 26, 2020 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  4 | P a g e  

the amount of $24,951.28, and to approve a budget amendment to the FY 2021 Grant 133 
Fund to appropriate these funds for the purchase of two (2) commercial grade washer/  134 
extractors and dryers 135 

 136 
Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 137 
Ordinance No. 2626 for first reading. 138 
 139 

• Ordinance No. 2627- 1st reading- authorizing the Mayor to enter into a Memorandum                  140 
of Understanding with the Wicomico County Health Department and approving a                   141 
budget amendment of the FY 2021 General Fund Budget to appropriate funds received 142 
from the Wicomico County Health Department in the amount of $7,500.00 143 

 144 
Ms. Gregory moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 145 
Ordinance No. 2627 for first reading. 146 
 147 

• Ordinance No. 2628- 1st reading- approving a budget amendment of the Grant Fund to 148 
appropriate funds to operate the Salisbury-Wicomico Firstcare Team (SWIFT) 149 

 150 
Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous to approve 151 
Ordinance No. 2628 for first reading. 152 
 153 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 154 
 155 
There were no requests for public comments. 156 
 157 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 158 
 159 
Mr. Boda encouraged everyone to vote, as early voting was at the Wicomico Youth & Civic Center, 160 
unless a mail-in ballot was requested. He also asked the public to support their local restaurants 161 
and businesses. 162 
 163 
Ms. Blake asked everyone to vote and if healthy enough to please donate blood. 164 
 165 
Ms. Gregory reminded everyone to vote. 166 
 167 
President Heath asked everyone to donate blood if healthy enough, and to wear their masks. 168 
 169 
MOTION TO CONVENE IN CLOSED SESSION 170 
 171 
At 7:09 p.m. President Heath called for a motion to convene in Closed Session to discuss the 172 
appointment, employment, assignment, promotion, discipline, demotion, compensation, removal, 173 
resignation, or performance evaluation of appointees, employees, or officials over whom this public 174 
body has jurisdiction; or any other personnel matter effecting one or more specific individuals in 175 
accordance with the Annotated Code of Maryland §3-305(b)(1).  176 
 177 



October 26, 2020 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  5 | P a g e  

Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous (4-0) to convene in Closed 178 
Session. 179 
 180 
 181 
RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION / REPORT TO PUBLIC  182 
 183 
At 7:40 p.m., upon a motion and seconded by Ms. Gregory and Mr. Boda, respectively, and 184 
approved by unanimous vote in favor, the Closed Session ended.  185 
 186 
At 4:46 p.m. Council convened in Open Session and President Heath reported that while in 187 
Closed Session Council had discussed an appointee’s evaluation.  188 
 189 
With no further business to conduct, the Open Session was adjourned. 190 
 191 
 192 
 193 
 194 
 195 
 196 
 197 
 198 
 199 
 200 
 201 
 202 
 203 
 204 
 205 
 206 
 207 
 208 
 209 
 210 
 211 
 212 
 213 
 214 
 215 
 216 
 217 
 218 
 219 
 220 
 221 
 222 
 223 
 224 



October 26, 2020 Legislative Session 
  Approved: 
  6 | P a g e  

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 225 
CLOSED SESSION 226 
OCTOBER 19, 2020 227 

 228 
TIME & PLACE: 5:38 p.m., Zoom Meeting of City Council 229 
PURPOSE: To consult with counsel to obtain legal advice on a legal matter; to consult 230 

with staff, consultants, or other individuals about pending or potential 231 
litigation 232 

VOTE TO CLOSE: Unanimous (5-0)  233 
CITATION: Annotated Code of Maryland §3-305(b)(7)(8) 234 
PRESENT: Council President John “Jack” R. Heath, Council Vice-President Muir Boda, 235 

Councilwoman Angela M. Blake, Councilwoman Michele Gregory, 236 
Councilwoman April Jackson, City Administrator Julia Glanz, Deputy City 237 
Administrator Andy Kitzrow, Department of Infrastructure & Development 238 
Director Amanda Pollack, City Attorney Mark Tilghman, City Clerk 239 
Kimberly Nichols 240 

ABSENT: Mayor Jacob R. Day  241 
***************************************************************************** 242 
The City Council convened in a Work Session via Zoom Meeting at 4:30 p.m. At 5:38 p.m., 243 
President Heath called for a motion to convene in Closed Session as permitted under the Annotated 244 
Code of Maryland §3-305(b)(7)(8). Ms. Jackson moved, Ms. Blake seconded, and the vote was 245 
unanimous (5-0) to convene in Closed Session. 246 
 247 
City Attorney Mark Tilghman provided an update on litigation and pending litigation involving the 248 
City. DID Director Amanda Pollack provided information on one of the lawsuits. 249 
 250 
At 6:00 p.m., Mr. Boda moved, Ms. Gregory seconded, and the vote was unanimous (5-0) to end the 251 
Closed Session.  252 
 253 
Council convened in Open Session at 6:06 p.m. and President Heath reported that Council had 254 
received an update on litigation and pending litigation while in Closed Session.  255 
 256 
Thereafter, with no further business to discuss, the Open Session immediately adjourned. 257 
 258 

 259 
City Clerk 260 
 261 
______________________ 262 
Council President 263 

______________________  



   

                             MEMORANDUM 
                        
                         
 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

From: Julie English, Administrative Assistant 

Subject: Re-appointment to the Historic District Commission 

Date: November 4, 2020 

The following member would like to be re-appointed to the Historic District Commission for the 
term ending as indicated. 
 
   Name    Term Ending 
   Brenden Frederick                    October 2023 
 
Attached you will find information from Brenden Frederick and the Resolution necessary for 
their re-appointment.  If approved, I will forward this information to the City Council so it may 
be placed on their agenda for the next Council meeting.  Please let me know if you have any 
questions. 
 
Attachment 
 
  



 

October 19, 2020 

 

 

 

Mayor Jake Day 

Office of the Mayor 

125 North Division Street 

Room 304 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 

 

Re: Re-Appointment 

CITY OF SALISBURY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION 

Salisbury, Maryland 

 

Dear Mayor Day: 

 

My current term as Commissioner on the Salisbury Historic District Commission will expire 

on October 31, 2020. I have thoroughly enjoyed my three terms on the board so far, and would 

like to continue to serve on this Commission for another term.  

 

I am a licensed Architect and Associate Principal with Becker Morgan Group, Inc., working 

primarily out of their Salisbury Maryland office, and currently reside at 712 Camden Avenue, 

Salisbury, Maryland. 

 

I look forward to another term on the Historic District Commission, pending your approval. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

Brenden D. Frederick, AIA, LEED AP 

Associate Principal 

bfrederick@beckermorgan.com 

 

bdf/apg 

 

 
BDF_sbyhd_re-appointment-ltr.doc 
 

 

 

 

mailto:bfrederick@beckermorgan.com


 

 

Brenden D. Frederick, AIA, LEED AP 
Associate Principal, Architect 

 

 
 
 
 

 
PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
 
Ocean City Convention Center / Expansion & Improvements | Ocean City, 
Maryland 
 
Lumberton Police Department | Lumberton, North Carolina 
 
Easton Police Department | Easton, Maryland 
 
Arlington County Emergency Communications Center | Arlington, Virginia 
 
Delaware State Police Troop 3 | Kent County, Delaware  
 
Delaware State Police Troop 7 | Lewes, Delaware 
 
Johnson Controls / Middletown Distribution Center | Middletown, Delaware 
 
Datwyler Pharmaceutical | Middletown, Delaware 
 
Laurel High School / Middle School | Laurel, Delaware 
 
William F. Cooke, Jr. Elementary School | Hockessin, Delaware 
 
John Dickinson High School Renovation | Wilmington, Delaware 
 
Milford Central Academy | Milford, Delaware 
 
James M. Bennett High School | Salisbury, Maryland 
 
Pocomoke High School | Pocomoke, Maryland 
 
South Dover Elementary School | Dover, Delaware 
 
Snow Hill High School | Snow Hill, Maryland 
 
Peninsula Regional Medical Center Linear Accelerator | Salisbury, Maryland 
 
Nanticoke Memorial Hospital / Mears Campus Medical Office Building | Seaford, 
Delaware  

Mr. Frederick is an architect with experience in educational, commercial, multi-family, 
public safety, and healthcare design. He has managed projects from the pre-design thru 
construction phase. He is a LEED Accredited Professional, was the American Institute of 
Architects (AIA) Maryland 2017 President and is a Director for the AIA Chesapeake Bay 
Chapter. 

 

EDUCATION 

2004:  
Bachelor of Architecture, Master of 
Architecture, Tulane University 

REGISTRATIONS & CERTIFICATIONS 

Delaware: S5-0008204, 2016 
Maryland: 0015772, 2009 
N.C.A.R.B.: 67219, 2009 
LEED Accredited Professional: 2009 

CAREER 

Becker Morgan Group, Inc. 
Associate Principal, 2018-present 
Senior Associate, 2014-2017 
Associate, 2011-2013 
Architect, 2009-2011 
Architectural Designer, 2004-2009 
 
Eisenman Architects  
Intern Architect, 2003 

COMMUNITY & PROFESSIONAL 
AFFILIATIONS 

American Institute of Architects (AIA) 
AIA Chesapeake Bay Chapter, 2017 

Director  
AIA Maryland Chapter, 2017 President 
Salisbury Historic District Commission 
Rotary Club of Wicomico County, 

President Elect 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 3072 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is re-appointed to the Historic District Commission, for the term ending as 4 
indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Brenden Frederick    October 2023 8 
   9 
 10 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 11 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on November ___________, 2020. 12 
 13 
ATTEST: 14 
 15 
 16 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 17 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 18 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 19 
 20 
 21 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 22 
 23 
__________ day of ______, 2020 24 
 25 
 26 
_____________________________________ 27 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator, for and at the 28 
direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 



   

                             MEMORANDUM 
                        
                         
 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

From: Julie English, Administrative Assistant 

Subject: Re-appointment to the Bicycle & Pedestrian Advisory Committee 

Date: November 4, 2020 

The following person would like to be re-appointed to the Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee for the term ending as indicated. 
 
   Name    Term Ending 
   Alexander Pope                     November 2023 
 
Attached you will find information from Alexander Pope and the resolution necessary for her 
re-appointment.  If approved, this information will be placed on the agenda for the next Council 
meeting.  Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Attachment 
 
cc:  Mayor Day  



From: Alexander Pope
To: Julie English
Subject: Alexander Pope would like to join the Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Committee.
Date: Monday, November 2, 2020 12:26:19 PM

Name

 Alexander Pope

Phone

 (512) 517-0192

Email

 thefourthpope@mac.com

Address

 
424 Pinehurst Ave
Salisbury, MD 21801
Map It

Where would you like to serve?

 Bicycle Pedestrian Advisory Committee

Why would you like to serve on this board/commission?

 I am applying to continue my service on B-PAC. I am an avid recreational cycler and pedestrian, and
appreciate the opportunity to help make our City safer.

Please upload a copy of your resume.

 Pope-CV.pdf

WARNING: This message was sent from an external source. Please verify the source before
clicking any links or opening any attachments. NEVER provide account credentials or
sensitive data unless the source has been 100% verified as legitimate.

mailto:noreplysby@gmail.com
mailto:jenglish@salisbury.md
mailto:thefourthpope@mac.com
http://maps.google.com/maps?q=424+Pinehurst+Ave+Salisbury%2C+MD+21801
https://salisbury.md/index.php?gf-download=2020%2F11%2FPope-CV.pdf&form-id=41&field-id=4&hash=7dfdf8d8ed6273fd4a483d3c51044f06f04775efbcf83318c1b13dc345b77e61


 POPE  –   1 

 
CURRICULUM VITAE 

 
Alexander “Sandy” Pope IV, Ph.D. 

1101 Camden Ave, Salisbury, MD 21801 
axpope@salisbury.edu 

(410) 543-6391 
 

EDUCATION 

Doctor of Philosophy Teachers College, Columbia University, 2015: Teaching of Social 
Studies; specialization in civic engagement 

Dissertation research: Opportunities for Civic Engagement: A Study in Five Social Studies 
Classes 

Master of Arts Texas State University-San Marcos, 2009: Secondary Education; specialization 
in curriculum and instruction 

Thesis research: First Person Interaction: The Benefits of Field Trip Experiences to Social 
Studies Education 

Master of Arts Texas State University-San Marcos, 2008: History; specialization in public 
history 

Bachelor of Arts The Colorado College, 2004: History and Philosophy 
Thesis research: On the Benefits of Museums to Public Education 

 

FACULTY & ADMINISTRATIVE POSITIONS 
Salisbury University  
Associate Professor, Department of Secondary and Physical Education; 2013 – ongoing  

Full-time tenured position teaching 24 credits per academic year. Focus on social studies 
methodologies and supervision of student teachers. Responsible for overseeing social studies 
program elements, including advising students and preparing SPA Reports. 
Institute for Public Affairs and Civic Engagement, Salisbury University  
Director, 2020 – ongoing (Co-Director, with Dr. Sarah Surak, 2015 – 2020) 
Direct the daily activities of PACE including supervising PACE staff, developing grant 
proposals and overseeing funded projects, delivering faculty professional development and 
student academic programming, and assessing programs. Direct the university’s Center for Civic 
Reflection (http://www.salisbury.edu/PACE). 
Maryland Holocaust Educators Network 
Co-Director, 2015 – ongoing 
With Julia Berg (2020 – ongoing) and Dr. Diana Wagner (2015 – 2019), design and deliver 
summer professional development programs that grow and maintain a network of K-12 educators 
interested in holocaust and social justice education (http://tinyurl.com/mdhen).   

ShoreCorps / AmeriCorps 
Project Director, 2016 – ongoing 
Direct activities for the ShoreCorps / AmeriCorps program at Salisbury University, including 
program assessment, training course, budget oversight and grant writing activities, and 
supervising program staff (http://www.salisbury.edu/AmeriCorps).   



 POPE  –   2 

TEACHING & ADVISING 
POST-SECONDARY TEACHER EDUCATION 

Salisbury University; 2013 – present  
Assistant Professor, Department of Secondary and Physical Education; 2015 – present 
(tenured August 15, 2019) 
Instructor of Teacher Education (FTTT); 2013 – 2015  
Social Studies Program Coordinator 

 Undergraduate Courses  
• EDFN 210: School in a Diverse Society 
• EDUC 491: Economics in Secondary Education (independent Study) 
• ELED 313: Social Studies Instruction 
• ELED 390: Human Geography in the Elementary Classroom (Independent Study) 
• ELED 390: Exploring Student Learning Styles (Independent Study) 
• ELED 391: Improving Economics Instruction for Elementary Grades 

(Independent Study) 
• ELED 398: Diversity and the Family 
• ELED 499: Diversity in the Community 
• PACE 211: Civic Engagement: An Introduction for Presidential Citizen Scholars 
• PACE 311: Civically Engaged: A Capstone for Presidential Citizen Scholars 
• SCED 372: Social Studies and Reading Instruction Methods I 
• SCED 472: Social Studies and Reading Instruction Methods II 

Graduate Courses  
• EDUC 502: Introduction to Research 
• EMAT 530: Social Studies and Reading Instruction Methods I 
• EMAT 532: Social Studies and Reading Instruction Methods II 
• EDCI 720: Diversity in Education (Doctoral) 

Field Supervision 
• ECED 445/446: Early Childhood Education Internship 
• ELED 401/402: Elementary Education Internship 
• EMAT 507: Graduate Secondary Education Internship 
• SCED 426: Secondary Education Internship 

Faculty Review  
• Formal review of Dr. Erin Stutelberg, ELA Methods faculty, March 2019 
• Formal review of ELED 313 adjunct faculty; October 2013 

Hunter College, The City University of New York; 2011 – 2013 
Adjunct Lecturer in Curriculum and Instruction  
Undergraduate Courses  

• QSTA 412: Teaching Social Studies Through Literature, the Arts, and 
Technology  

Graduate Courses  
• CEDC 722: Social Studies Curriculum and Instruction: Integrating Literature, the 

Arts, and Technology 
• CEDC 7225 Social Studies Curriculum and Instruction for Diverse Learners 



 POPE  –   3 

• CEDC 746: Geographic Perspectives: Global and Local in Elementary Education  
Field Supervision 

• QSTA 301: Social Studies and Literature (Undergraduate) 
• CEDC 715: Social Studies and Literature (Graduate) 

Teachers College, Columbia University; 2011 – 2012 
Adjunct Instructor in Social Studies Education 
Graduate Courses  

• A&HW 5199: Issues: Using the Past – Primary Source Documents Inside and Out 
of the Social Studies Classroom 

• A&HW 4036: The Teaching of Social Studies 
• A&HW 4530: Seminar: Student Teachers-Social Studies 

Intern Supervision 
• Student Teacher Supervisor 

MENTORSHIP 

Williams, S. (2019 – ongoing). Dissertation Committee Member, 2nd Reader 
Briggs, F. (2017 – 2018). Dissertation Committee Member, 2nd Reader 

Research mentorship of graduate research assistant, Doctor of Education; 2014 
Project: Assessing Civic Engagement in the Classroom: Data Collection and Analysis 

Mentorship of graduate research assistant, Institute for Public Affairs and Civic Engagement; 
2014 – ongoing 
Project: Civic Engagement Across the Curriculum research program 

ADVISING 

Undergraduate Candidates in Secondary Education 
Graduate Candidates in Secondary Education 

Coordinator, Social Studies minor 
ELEMENTARY & SECONDARY TEACHING EXPERIENCE 

PS 154, New York, NY; 2012 – 2013 
Literacy and Social Studies specialist, 3rd Grade  

School for Global Leaders, New York, NY; 2010 – 2012 
Social Studies and Service Learning teacher, 6th Grade 

PS 92, New York, NY; 2009 – 2010  
Literacy and Social Studies specialist, 4th Grade 

W.C. Akins High School, Austin, Texas; 2009 
10th Grade; varsity tennis coach 

OTHER PROFESSIONAL EDUCATION EXPERIENCE 
United States Holocaust Memorial Museum; 2018 

Holocaust Institute for Teacher Educators fellowship  

The Olga Lengyel Institute Holocaust Memorial Library; 2016 
The Memorial Library Leadership Institute  



 POPE  –   4 

Consultant, American Geosciences Institute; 2015 
Co-Leader, Belfer First Step: A Workshop for Teaching About the Holocaust for Pre-Service 

Teachers; 2015 

Team member; ADP/TDC Economic Inequality Initiative; 2014 – 2017 (3 year term) 
Holocaust Memorial Library; 2014 

The Memorial Library Summer Seminar in Holocaust Education fellowship 
United States Holocaust Memorial Museum; 2014 

Holocaust Institute for Teacher Educators summer fellowship 
Teachers College, Columbia University; 2009 – 2011 

Teachers College Reading and Math Buddy 

Generation Citizen; 2009 – 2013 
New York program coordination and evaluation 

Bob Bullock Texas State History Museum, Austin, TX; 2007 – 2009 
Museum Educator 

 

RESEARCH 
RESEARCH INTERESTS: 

I am interested in all aspects of civic engagement, particularly the ways in which students 
and teachers consider themselves active in their communities. My work considers broad 
ideas of citizenship within, across, and without educational institutions at the K-12 and post-
secondary levels. 

 

PUBLICATIONS 
Journal Articles 

Pope, A, & Surak, S. (2020). Discipline-oriented citizenship. eJournal of Public Affairs 9(2), 
http://www.ejournalofpublicaffairs.org/discipline-oriented-citizenship/. 

Pope, A., & Wagner, D. (2020). Using visual sets to open inquiry on the Holocaust. THE 
JOURNAL, Winter, 19-24. 

Pope, A., & Patterson, T. (2019). “Hi, my name is”: Using music to inform positionality in 
qualitative research. Curriculum Teaching and Dialogue, 21(1/2), 81-95. 

Jain, S., Cohen, A., Kawashima-Ginsberg, K., Duarte, C., & Pope, A. (2019). Civic 
engagement among youth exposed to community violence: Directions for assets-based 
research and practice. Journal of Youth Development, 14(1), 24-47. 

Cohen, A., Littenberg-Tobias, J., Pope, A., Stolte, L., & Wong, K. (2018) Action civics 
education and civic outcomes for urban youth: An evaluation of the impact of Generation 
Citizen. Citizenship Teaching and Learning, 13(3) 351-368. 

Pope, A., Cohen, A., & Duarte, C. (2018). Making civic engagement go viral: Applying 
social epidemiology principles to civic education. Journal of Public Affairs, 19(1), 1-
10. https://doi.org/10.1002/pa.1857. 



 POPE  –   5 

Surak, S., & Pope, A. (2016). Engaging the educators: Facilitating civic engagement through 
faculty development. Journal of Higher Education Outreach, 20(3), 140-163. 

Pope, A. (2014). Critical civic consciousness: Exploring the U.S. civic opportunity gap with 
Giroux and Freire. Citizenship Teaching and Learning, 9(3), 241-256. 

Bond, N., & Pope, A. (2013). Advocacy throughout the year: Taking a stand for the 
profession. Kappa Delta Pi Record 49, 64-69.  

Pope, A., & Patterson, T. (2012). Two sides of the megalopolis: Educating for sustainable 
citizenship. Journal of Social Studies Education Research, 3(2). 

Pope, A., Stolte, L., & Cohen, A. (2011). Closing the civic engagement gap: Finding a home 
for action civics at school. Social Education 75(5), 265-268.  

Book Chapters - * denotes blind peer reviewed 

* Pope, A., & Kyriacopoulos, K. (2019). Questions lead to action. In J. Hubbard, Ed. 
Extending the Ground of Public Confidence: Teaching Civil Liberties in K-16 Social 
Studies Education. pp. 323-340. Charlotte, NC: Information Age Publishing. 

Pope, A. (2017). Tracking in schools: Candidates map their placement context. In S.G. Grant, 
K. Swan, & J. Lee, Eds. Teaching Social Studies: A Methods Book for Methods Teachers, 
pp. 251-257. Charlotte, NC: Information Age Publishing. 

Surak, S., Jensen, C., McCartney, A., & Pope, A. (2017). Teaching faculty to teach civic 
engagement: Interdisciplinary models to facilitate pedagogical success. In E. Matto, A 
McCartney, E. Bennion, & D. Simpson, Eds. Teaching Civic Engagement Across the 
Disciplines, pp. 231-247. APSA Publications. 

Book Reviews 
Pope, A. (2017).  [Review of the book Pushout: The criminalization of Black girls in schools. 

By M. Morris]. The Educational Forum, 81, 1-2. DOI: 10.1080/00131725.2107.1280764  
Pope, A. (2014). [Review of the book Finding joy in teaching students of diverse 

backgrounds: Culturally responsive and socially just practices in U.S. classrooms. By S. 
Nieto]. Kappa Delta Pi Record, 50, 143. DOI: 10.1080/00228958.2014.931161  

Other Formats 
Bond, N., Dagenais, R., Bolton, M., Cook, M., Gaffney, C., Pope, A., Stewart, P., & Sterrett, 

W. (2014). KDP Public Policy Brief: The future of teaching as a profession. Retrieved 
from http://kdp.org/aboutkdp/pdf/PP_Brief.pdf  

Pope, A. (2014). Fave Five: Favorite Apps. New Teacher Advocate 22(2), 10. 
World Leaders Forum. (2013). Five boroughs to the world: Inspiring international 

connections through education. [Curriculum]. New York: Columbia University. 
Pope, A. (2012). Fort Worth Symphony Orchestra. In L. Jasinksi, (Ed.), The handbook of 

Texas music, second edition (pp. 220-221). Denton, TX: Texas State Historical 
Association. 

Brand, S., Estrada, V., Phelps, P., Pope, A., & Smith, C. (2012). Discussion guide. A tale of 
two teachers: Learning to teach over time. Kappa Delta Pi Connect, July, 2012. 

Pope, A. (2011). Discussion Guide. Assessment. Kappa Delta Pi Connect, November, 2011.  



 POPE  –   6 

Forthcoming – submitted for publication 
Fitzgerald, J., Cohen, A., Castro, E., & Pope, A. (2020). A systematic review of the last 

decade of civic education research in the USA. Peabody Journal of Education [Special 
Issue]. Civic education and civic capacity in public schools: Challenges and opportunities 
in strengthening democratic practices. 

Books – under contract 
Lemberg, J., & Pope, A. (2020). Opportunities and challenges in Holocaust education. Co-

Published by Teacher College Press and National Writing Project. 
Forthcoming – in preparation  

Pope, A., & Basom, D. (2020). Creating a “continuum of disruption” to analyze limits on 
First Amendment Rights. In preparation for Social Education. 

Pope, A., & Surak, S. (2020). Civic reflection on the college campus.  
 
EDITORIAL ACTIVITIES 

Co-Editor with Dr. Teresa Wojcik, THE JOURNAL of the Middle States Council for the 
Social Studies; 2018 – present 

Guest Editor: Cohen, A., Pope, A, & Wong, K. (2021). Peabody Journal of Education 
[Special Issue]. Civic education and civic capacity in public schools: Challenges and 
opportunities in strengthening democratic practices. 

Manuscript Reviewer 
Journal of Curriculum Studies, 2015 – ongoing  
Educational Researcher; 2013 – ongoing  
Journal of Social Studies Education Research; 2012 – ongoing  
Kappa Delta Pi Record; 2012 – ongoing  
Social Studies Research and Practice; 2012 – ongoing  
The Educational Forum; 2013 – ongoing  
 

GRANTS 
External Grants Funded ($2,376,078) 

2020 – 2021 American Democracy “Understanding Engagement in Time of Crisis”; $13,600 
(in-kind); Institutional lead 

2020 – 2021 AmeriCorps / ShoreCorps Grant; $505,206; Primary Investigator 
2020 – 2021 Causality Brand Grant; $35,000 (in-kind); Institutional lead 

2020 – 2021 Re-envisioning Ethics Access and Community Humanities (R.E.A.C.H.) 
Initiative @ Salisbury University: Integrating Community and Curricular Ethics; 
National Endowment for the Humanities; $35,000; Faculty Advisory Board 

2019 – 2020 AmeriCorps / ShoreCorps Grant; $519,453; Primary Investigator  

2018 – 2019 AmeriCorps / ShoreCorps Grant; $411,256; Primary Investigator 
2018 Holocaust Educators Network Satellite Seminar Grant; $14,000; Primary Investigator 

2017 – 2018 AmeriCorps / ShoreCorps Grant; $378,737; Primary Investigator 



 POPE  –   7 

2017 – 2018 Maryland Geographic Alliance grant for Geographic Student Impact Studies; 
$54,114; Primary Investigator 

2017 Holocaust Educators Network Satellite Seminar Grant; $13,000; Primary Investigator 

2016 – 2017 AmeriCorps / ShoreCorps/PALS Grant; $337,245; Primary Investigator 
2016 – 2017 Maryland Geographic Alliance grant for geography education; $3,500; Primary 

Investigator  
2016 Holocaust Educators Network Satellite Seminar Grant; $13,000; Primary Investigator 

2015 Holocaust Educators Network Satellite Seminar Grant; $13,000; Primary Investigator 
2014 – 2015 Library of Congress Teaching with Primary Sources, $19,783; Primary 

Investigator 
2011 – 2012 Library of Congress Teaching with Primary Sources, $10,184; Primary 

Investigator 
Internal Grants 

2019 – 2020 Faculty Learning Community: The Pedagogy of Civic Reflection; Co-
investigator with Dr. Shawn McEntee; $2,480 

2018 Salisbury University Faculty Development Travel Grant; $400 
2018 Salisbury University Libraries Course Enhancement Grant; $750 

2016 – 2017 Salisbury University Diversity Grant; $700; Primary Investigator  
2013 Salisbury University Faculty Development Travel Grant; $400 

2010 – 2011 Teachers College Vice President’s Grant for Community and Diversity 
Initiatives Recipient, $760 

Grants Not Funded 
2016 Sharon Abramson Holocaust Research Grant; $5,280; Primary Investigator 

2015 Library of Congress Teaching with Primary Sources: Congressional Civic Participation, 
$268,192; Primary Investigator 

2014 – 2015 Faculty Research Mini-Grant, $2,500 
2013 Seagull Century Grant for Faculty Travel, $500 

2011 – 2012 Institute for Social and Economic Research and Policy, $4,891.95; Primary 
Investigator 

2010 – 2011 Teachers College Dean’s Grant for Student Research, $2,000 
Grant Reviewer 

Library of Congress Teaching with Primary Sources Program; 2015 – ongoing  
 

OTHER RESEARCH EXPERIENCE 
Author of Salisbury University’s application for The Carnegie Foundation for the 

Advancement of Teaching Elective Community Engagement Classification; awarded 
2020 – 2026  



 POPE  –   8 

Consultant for community engagement curriculum development; USIEF 21st Century 
Knowledge Initiative: Community engagement through interactive documentary 
filmmaking; 2019 

Consultant for curriculum development and evaluation; Office of School & Community 
Partnerships and Columbia University’s Global Centers & University Programs World 
Leaders Forum Outreach Series, 2011 – 2016 

Consultant on Spencer Foundation Small Grant: Initiative on Civic Learning and Civic 
Action; 2011 – 2012  

Evaluation and Publications Consultant; Arthur Zankel Urban Fellows Program, 2010-2012 

Fundamentals of American History Teaching American History grant: Learning through an 
Expanded Arts Program, 2009 – 2013 

The Core American Project Teaching American History grant: Learning through an 
Expanded Arts Program, 2009 – 2013  

Generation Citizen New York State Evaluation Consultant, 2009 – 2013  
Global Learning Collaborative researcher, 2009 – 2011 

 
Manuscript Reviewer 

Journal of Curriculum Studies, 2015 – ongoing  
Educational Researcher; 2013 – ongoing  
Journal of Social Studies Education Research; 2012 – ongoing  
Kappa Delta Pi Record; 2012 – ongoing  
Social Studies Research and Practice; 2012 – ongoing  
The Educational Forum; 2013 – ongoing  
 

Scholarly Presentations - * denotes research conducted with students 

Pope, A. (2019). Continuum of disruption: Student-defined limits on student activism. Paper 
presented at the National Council for the Social Studies Annual Conference, Austin, TX. 

Pope, A. (2019). Choropleth maps: The most flexible means of geographic inquiry. Paper 
presented at the National Council for the Social Studies Annual Conference, Austin, TX. 

Pope, A. (2019). Reflecting on teacher agency. Paper presented at the National Council for 
the Social Studies Annual Conference, Austin, TX. 

Pope, A. (2019). Civic reflection in the curriculum. Paper presented at the Middle States 
Council for the Social Studies Annual Conference, King of Prussia, PA. 

Surak, S., & Pope, A. (2018). Civic engagement across the institution: A perspective from the 
United States. Paper presented to the Shaping the Future of Europe, Frankfurt, Germany. 

Pope, A. (2017). Teaching my 100-year history. Paper presented to the 13th Annual 
International Congress on Qualitative Inquiry, Urbana-Champaign, IL. 

Pope, A. (2017). Public positionality: Exploring researcher stance through musical 
selections. Paper presented to the 13th Annual International Congress on Qualitative 
Inquiry, Urbana-Champaign, IL. 



 POPE  –   9 

Pope, A., & Haugen, M. (2017). Maintaining friendships with football: Crossing state lines 
for the Texas Longhorns. Paper presented to the 13th Annual International Congress on 
Qualitative Inquiry, Urbana-Champaign, IL. 

Pope, A. (2016). Barriers to civic engagement: Critical readings of community as de-
legitimizing student engagement. Paper presented to the College and University Faculty 
Assembly of the National Council for the Social Studies Annual Conference, 
Washington, DC. 

Pope, A. (2016). When should students learn about the Holocaust? Paper presented to the 
12th Annual International Congress on Qualitative Inquiry, Urbana-Champaign, IL. 

Pope, A. (2016). Defining community through research. Paper presented to the 12th Annual 
International Congress on Qualitative Inquiry, Urbana-Champaign, IL. 

Surak, S., Pope, A., & Pereboom, M. (2016). Innovations in citizenship education: 
Experiential learning, faculty development and assessment. Paper presented to the 
American Democracy Project, Indianapolis, IN. 

Pope, A. & Wagner, D. (2016). Interactive strategies for teaching the Holocaust. Paper 
presented to the Middle States Council for the Social Studies, Annapolis, MD. 

Patterson, T. & Pope, A. (2015). Designing History Professional Development: Lessons from 
the TAH Grant Program. Paper presented to the National Council for the Social Studies, 
New Orleans, LA 

Pope, A., & Patterson, T. (2015). Using music to inform researcher positionality statements. 
Paper presented to the American Educational Research Association (AERA) Annual 
Meeting, Chicago, IL. 

Maker, E., Cohen, A., Fitzgerald, J., & Pope, A. (2015). Effective civics education pedagogy 
and programs: A systematic review. Paper presented to the American Educational 
Research Association (AERA) Annual Meeting, Chicago, IL. 

*Phillips, K. (2015). Investigating student interests in learning. Poster presented to Salisbury 
University Student Research Conference, Salisbury, MD. 

Pope, A. (2015). Service learning in elementary education. Salisbury University Teaching & 
Learning Conference, Salisbury, MD. 

*Pope, A., McFadden, J., & Swiderski, M. (2015). Using civic engagement to cultivate 21st 
Century civil society in a university setting. Paper presented to the Middle States Council for 
the Social Studies Regional Conference, Gettysburg, PA. 

Patterson, T. & Pope, A. (2015). Not fully gone: Lessons learned from the Teaching 
American History grant program. Paper presented to the Middle States Council for the 
Social Studies Regional Conference, Gettysburg, PA. 

Surak, S., & Pope, A. (2014). Educating the educators: Facilitating civic engagement 
through faculty development. Paper presented to the American Political Science 
Association Teaching & Learning Conference, Washington, D.C.  

Pope, A. (2014). Revising methods courses using C3. Paper presented to the National 
Council for the Social Studies (NCSS) Annual Conference, Boston, MA. 



 POPE  –   10 

Pope, A., & Patterson, T. (2014). Content transformation: TAH-G programs and teaching 
historical diversity. Paper presented to the Maryland Council for the Social Studies, 
Shady Grove, MD. 

Pope, A., Surak, S., & Pereboom, M. (2014). Institutionalizing civic engagement through 
faculty development. Paper presented to the American Democracy Project Annual 
Conference, Louisville, KY. 

Pope, A., & Cohen, A. (2014). Mapping civic epidemics. Paper presented to the Center for 
the Study of Citizenship: Place, (Dis)Place, and Citizenship Conference, Detroit, MI. 

Pope, A., & Clark, S. (2014). Visual inquiry and C3. Paper presented to the Middle States 
Council for the Social Studies Regional Conference, Falls Church, VA. 

Pope, A. (2013). Actors or directors? Why teachers and students might struggle to describe 
“civic action.” Paper presented to the College and University Faculty Assembly of the 
National Council for the Social Studies (NCSS) Annual Conference, St. Louis, MO. 

Pope, A., & Gross, I. (2013). Promoting historical inquiry with art and popular culture. 
Paper presented to the National Council for the Social Studies (NCSS) Annual 
Conference, St. Louis, MO. 

Pope, A. (2013). Using digital archives to meet ELA and History Common Core State 
Standards. Paper presented to the Kappa Delta Pi Biennial Convocation, Dallas, TX. 

Pope, A. (2013). Invoking conscientização to address the civic opportunity gap. Paper 
presented to the American Educational Research Association (AERA) Annual Meeting, 
San Francisco, CA. 

Pope, A, & Patterson, T. (2013). Two programs’ use of sustainable citizenship to address 
environmental poverty in the American northeast. Paper presented to the American 
Educational Research Association (AERA) Annual Meeting, San Francisco, CA. 

Pope, A., & Patterson, T. (2013). Sustainable citizenship: How educational farm visits 
promote high-quality citizenship. Paper presented to the Center for the Study of 
Citizenship: The Meaning of Citizenship Conference, Detroit, MI. 

Pope, A., & Cohen, A. (2013). A civic epidemic: Reconceptualizing citizenship education. 
Paper presented to the Center for the Study of Citizenship: The Meaning of Citizenship 
Conference, Detroit, MI.   

Cohen, A., Pope, A., Bates, W., & Muennig, P. (2013). Addressing disparities in civic 
engagement and health: Identifying areas of overlap. Paper presented to the 5th Annual 
Health Disparities Conference at Teachers College, New York, NY. 

Pope, A. (2012). Critical civic consciousness: A conceptual framework for civic engagement. 
Paper presented to the College and University Faculty Assembly of the National Council 
for the Social Studies (NCSS) Annual Conference, Seattle, WA. 

Patterson, T., & Pope, A. (2012). Visual sources: Using Library of Congress archives in the 
classroom. Paper presented to the National Council for the Social Studies (NCSS) 
Annual Conference, Seattle, WA. 

Pope, A. (2012). Conceptions of civic engagement: Three teachers’ approaches to active 
citizenship. Paper presented to the American Educational Research Association (AERA) 
Annual Meeting, Vancouver, BC, Canada. 



 POPE  –   11 

Stolte, L., Pope, A., Cohen, A., Warren, S., & Allen, J. (2011). Experiencing government: 
Pedagogical lessons from Malden High School. Paper presented to the National Council 
for the Social Studies (NCSS) Annual Conference, Washington, D.C. 

Pope, A., & Stolte, L. (2011). How students can impact the community with action civics. 
Paper presented to Kappa Delta Pi 48th Biennial Convocation, Indianapolis, IN. 

Pope, A., & Stolte, L. (2011). Finding and working with like-minded colleagues. Paper 
presented to Kappa Delta Pi 48th Biennial Convocation, Indianapolis, IN. 

Cohen, A., Pope, A., Stolte, L., Warren, S. (2011). Inciting civic imagination through action: 
Generation Citizen. Paper presented to the American Educational Research Association 
(AERA) Annual Meeting, New Orleans, LA. 

Pope, A. (2011). Building community through Texas history: Learning on a field trip to the 
Bob Bullock Texas State History Museum. Paper presented to the National Council on 
Public History Annual Meeting, Pensacola, FL. 

Pope, A. (2011). From family farm to community education: A working model. Paper 
presented to the National Council on Public History Annual Meeting, Pensacola, FL. 

Pope, A. (2011). Educating for the next generation of active citizens. Paper presented to the 
Center for the Study of Citizenship: Bodies and Citizenship Conference, Detroit, MI. 

Patterson, T., & Pope, A. (2010). Educating for sustainable citizenship: Two sides of the 
Megalopolis. Paper presented to the College and University Faculty Assembly of the 
National Council for the Social Studies (NCSS) Annual Conference, Denver, CO.  

Pope, A. & Patterson, T. (2010). Sustainability and civics: Promoting education through 
farm field trips. Paper presented to the National Council for the Social Studies (NCSS) 
Annual Conference, Denver, CO. 

Shuttleworth, J., Pope, A., & Wylie, S. (2010). Sustainability in the social studies: 
Implications of research for practice. Paper presented to the National Council for the 
Social Studies (NCSS) Annual Conference, Denver, CO.  

Pope, A. (2010). Learning on a field trip to the Bob Bullock Texas State History Museum. 
Paper presented to the History Educators International Research Network (HEIRNET) 
Annual International Meeting, New York City, NY. 

Pope, A. (2007). Developing confidence using cooperative learning groups and hands-on 
activities for mixed-language ability students. Paper presented to Kappa Delta Pi 46th 
Biennial Convocation, Louisville, KY. 

Other Presentations 

Pope, A. (2018). New NCSS teacher prep standards. Presentation at Middle States Council 
for the Social Studies, Falls Church, VA. 

Pope, A. (2016). What methods looks like today. Presentation at Howard County Professional 
Day, Howard County, MD. 

Pope, A., Wojcik, T., Abbott, S., Snyder, R., & Brown, B. (2016). Ask the experts: How do I 
get my first teaching job? Panel presentation at the Middle States Council for the Social 
Studies, Annapolis, MD. 



 POPE  –   12 

Cairn, R., Pope, A., & Schramm, R. (2013). Primary sources: At the heart of the Common 
Core State Standards. Webinar presented for the Library of Congress Teaching with 
Primary Sources program. 

Pope, A. (2013). Reaching standards through community resources. Workshop presentation 
to Place-based Learning & Common Core Conference, Teaching the Hudson Valley 
Institute, Hyde Park, NY.  

Bond, N., & Pope, A. (2012). Public policy webinar part II: Effective advocacy. Webinar 
presented for Kappa Delta Pi, international honor society in education. 

Pope, A. (2010). Harlem AIDS Blanket. Project presented at School and Community 
Partnerships Conference, Teachers College, Columbia University.  

Pope, A. (2010). Thinking Beyond Borders. Project presented to Kappa Chapter of Kappa 
Delta Pi, Teachers College, Columbia University. 

Other Conference Participation 

Chair and Moderator, 13th Annual International Congress on Qualitative Inquiry, Urbana-
Champaign, IL. 

Pope, A. (2015). Panel Chair. Civic engagement at Salisbury University: Reflections from 
faculty experiences. Salisbury University Teaching & Learning Conference, Salisbury, 
MD. 

Invited Participant, Center for the Future of Education, Kappa Delta Pi Biennial 
Convocation, Dallas, TX; 2013 

Moderator, Higher Education Focus Group. Kappa Delta Pi Biennial Convocation, Dallas, 
TX; 2013 

Moderator, Civic Education. Center for the Study of Citizenship: The Meaning of Citizenship 
Conference, Detroit, Michigan; 2013 

Reviewer, National Council for the Social Studies; Seattle, WA; December 2012 

Reviewer, College & University Faculty Assembly: Graduate Student Forum; Seattle, WA; 
2012 

Reviewer, National Council for the Social Studies; Washington, DC; 2011 
Reviewer, College & University Faculty Assembly, Washington, DC; 2011 

Reviewer, Kappa Delta Pi Centennial Conference: Leadership Through Service; 2011 
Moderator, International environmental education. Presentation moderator at Teachers 

College, Columbia University, 2010. 
Moderator, Teachers and the Law. Kappa Delta Pi presentation at St. Edward’s University, 

Austin, TX, 2008. 
 

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS 
Kappa Delta Pi, Member and chapter counselor 

National Council for the Social Studies, Member 
College and University Faculty Assembly of NCSS, Member 



 POPE  –   13 

Middle States Council for the Social Studies, Member 
Maryland Council for the Social Studies, Member 
Pi Gamma Mu, Member  

 
AWARDS 

2019 Honor Award, Middle States Council for Social Studies 
2018 Wilson H. Elkins Professorship, University System of Maryland, with Dr. Sarah Surak 

2015 – 2016 Outstanding Liaison Award 
Salisbury University 

2014 – 2015 Literacy Alive! gold medal award 
Kappa Delta Pi, International honor society in education 

2014 – 2015 Phoenix Award for Chapter Improvement 
Kappa Delta Pi, International honor society in education 

2012 Morton D. Flaum Scholarship  
Teachers College, Columbia University 

2011-2012 Teachers College Supplemental Scholarship 
Teachers College, Columbia University  

2011 Outstanding Service Award 
Teachers College, Columbia University 

2010-2011 Arts & Humanities Departmental Supplemental Scholarship 
Teachers College, Columbia University 

2009-2010 AmeriCorps Fellow: Harlem AIDS Blanket project co-director 
 Institute for Urban and Minority Education 

2009 ACE Award Recipient, 47th Kappa Delta Pi Biennial Convocation 
2007 ACE Award Recipient, 46th Kappa Delta Pi Biennial Convocation 

2007 Associated Student Government Scholarship, Texas State University-San Marcos 
 

SERVICE 
SERVICE TO THE DEPARTMENT OF SECONDARY AND PHYSICAL EDUCATION 

Director, Graduate Programs and Master of Arts in Teaching; 2019 – 2020 

Member, HOPE/LLC Committee; 2018 – ongoing  
Counselor, Rho Eta chapter of Kappa Delta Pi at Salisbury University; 2013 – 2020  

Member, Seidel Curriculum Committee; 2016 – 2017  
Member, Restructuring Education Workgroup; 2016  

 
SERVICE TO THE DEPARTMENT OF TEACHER EDUCATION 

Member, Elementary Education Curriculum Committee; 2013 – 2016 



 POPE  –   14 

Member, Learning Living Communities Committee; 2013 – 2016  
Member, Student Dispositions Committee; 2013 – 2016  
Mentor, ELED 313 Adjunct; 2015 – 2016  
Chair, Teacher Education Tenure Track Social Studies Education Search Committee; Spring 

2016 

Member, Teacher Education Tenure Track Science Education Search Committee; Fall 2015 
Member, Teacher Education Full-Time Lecturer Search Committee; Spring 2014 

Assisted with developing new faculty peer review form; 2013 
 
SERVICE TO THE SEIDEL SCHOOL OF EDUCATION & PROFESSIONAL STUDIES 

Member, Secondary / PK-12 Planning Committee; 2014 – ongoing 
Member, Seidel / CHHS Diversity Interest Group; 2015 – ongoing  

Chair; 2017 – 2018  
Member, Faculty Senate; 2017 – 2019 (two-year term) 

Secretary, Faculty Senate; 2018 – 2019 

Member, Graduate Programs Committee; 2013 – 2017 
Member, Education Doctorate Program Policy Committee; 2013 – 2014, 2015 – 2016 

Member, Ed.D. Assistant Professor Search Committee; Spring 2016 
Member, Ed.D. Associate Professor Search Committee; Fall 2015  

Member, Teacher Education 4-Credit Program Committee; 2014 – 2015 
Member, Salisbury University Children’s and Young Adult Literature Festival;  

2013 – 2015 
 
SERVICE TO THE UNIVERSITY 

Faculty Member, President’s Student Advisory Council; 2020 – ongoing 

Chair, Government Relations Committee; 2020 – 2022 (three-year term) 
Social Studies minor coordinator; 2013 – ongoing  
Member, University System of Maryland Civic Engagement Workgroup – Carnegie 

Foundation's Classification for Community Engagement; 2018 – ongoing 

Member, SU Provost Search Committee; 2018 
Member, Maryland History Day / SU Steering Committee; 2014 – 2017 
Member, President’s Advisory Board on Diversity and Inclusion; 2014 – 2017 (three-year 

term) 
Counselor, Maryland Gamma chapter of Pi Gamma Mu at Salisbury University;  

2015 – 2017  

Member, MD-SOAR Advisory Committee; 2015 



 POPE  –   15 

Member, Middle States Accreditation Committee 
Chair, working group on Fostering Community; 2014 – 2015 

Member, Undergraduate Curriculum Committee; 2014 – 2015 (one-year term) 

Member, New Faculty Orientation Committee; 2014 – 2015 
Professional development viewing and discussion of Teach; November 2013 
Teachers College, Columbia University; 2010 – 2012 

Student Conduct Committee member 
 
SERVICE TO THE PROFESSION 

Board Member, Maryland Council for the Social Studies; 2014 – ongoing 
Past-President; 2020 – 2022 (two-year term) 
President; 2018 – 2020 (two-year term) 
President-Elect; 2016 – 2017 (two-year term) 

Member, Maryland State Department of Education Social Studies Pre-Service Preparation 
Working Group; 2016 – ongoing 

Reviewer, Library of Congress Teaching with Primary Sources grant; 2015 – ongoing 
Member, Maryland Geographic Alliance steering committee; 2015 – ongoing  

Member, University System of Maryland Working Group on Civic Engagement; 2018 – 
2020  

Member, KDP National Public Policy & Advocacy Committee 
Leadership Team; 2015 – 2016  
Chair; 2014 – 2015 
Outreach sub-committee chair; 2011 – 2013 

Executive Council member-at-large representative, Kappa Delta Pi; 2010 – 2012 
President, Kappa Chapter, Teachers College, Columbia University; 2009 – 2011 

President, Eta Zeta Chapter, Texas State University-San Marcos; 2006 – 2009 
 

SERVICE TO THE COMMUNITY 
Member, City of Salisbury Bicycle-Pedestrian Advisory Committee; 2017 – 2021 (four-year 

term) 
Consultant, Teackle Mansion & Somerset County Historical Society; 2013 

W!SE Quality of Life, scholarship judge; 2010, 2011, 2013 
Judge, Generation Citizen Civics Day; 2012 

Selection Committee, 2010-2011 Arthur Zankel Urban Fellows Program 
Generation Citizen partnership, Kappa chapter, Kappa Delta Pi; 2009 – 2012 

Better World Books partnership, Kappa chapter, Kappa Delta Pi; 2009 – 2012 
Reading Is Fun! Service Project, Eta Zeta chapter, Kappa Delta Pi; 2007 – 2008 

HEB Excellence in Education, Essay Judge; 2007 



 POPE  –   16 

 
UNIVERSITY PARTICIPATION 
Freshman Open House, 2015, 2016, 2018, 2019 

New Student Reader discussion leader, 2015 
University Analysis, Reporting, & Assessment content review and alignment 

History general education assessment, 2015 
Social Responsibility assessment, 2015 

Admitted Student Day, 2015 
Transfer Student Summer Orientation, 2015 

Admitted students recruiting calls, 4 calls 2015 
Seidel Open House, 2014 

Winter and Spring Graduation 
Fall Commencement 
 
PROFESSIONAL SKILLS 

Social Studies 8-12 Composite Certification; State of Texas; 2009 – 2014  
Spanish, Tested Proficient at the Academic Reading Level on 2/8/13 by the Department of 

Latin American and Iberian Cultures at Columbia University  
 

 
References available upon request 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 3073 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the following 3 
individual is reappointed to the Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Committee for the term 4 
ending as indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Alexander Pope    November 2023 8 
   9 
 10 
 11 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 12 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on November ___________, 2020. 13 
 14 
ATTEST: 15 
 16 
 17 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 18 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 19 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 20 
 21 
 22 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 23 
 24 
__________ day of ______, 2020 25 
 26 
 27 
____________________________________ 28 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator, for and at the 29 
direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor 30 



   

                             MEMORANDUM 
                        
                         
 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

From: Julie English, Administrative Assistant III 

Subject: Appointment to the Parks and Recreation Committee 

Date: November 4, 2020 

The following person has applied for appointment to the Parks and Recreation Committee for the term ending as 
indicated: 
 
   Name    Term Ending 
   Dominique Sessa   November 2023 
 
Attached you will find information from Dominique Sessa and the resolution necessary for her appointment. If you 
approve of this appointment, I will forward this information to the City Council so it may be placed on their agenda 
at the next Council meeting. Please let me know if you have any questions. 
 
Attachment 
 



1

Kim Nichols

From: Dominique Sessa <noreplysby@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 30, 2020 12:41 AM
To: Julie English
Subject: Dominique Sessa would like to join the Parks & Recreation Committee.

Name  

   Dominique Sessa  

Phone  

   (484) 632-4945  

Email  

   dominiquesessa@icloud.com  

Address  

  
1416 Beckford Ct 
Salisbury, MD 21804 
Map It  

Where would you like to serve?  

   Parks & Recreation Committee  

Why would you like to serve on this board/commission?  

  

To whom it may concern,  
 
I would love to serve to help foster a better quality of life for those with disabilities in Salisbury, to encourage accessibility, to 
help support our underserved communities (i.e. acknowledge more content that could be linguistic friendly and or how some of 
our community is affected by financial disparity), and to bring my unique background of volunteerism to the Committee. As a 
woman with a disability, I think my unique background could help foster a better concept of accessibility to our parks! 
 
I have attached a Cover letter in the resume as well.  

Please upload a copy of your resume.  

  
 Dominique-Sessa-Resume-Parks-and-Rec.pdf 

 

WARNING: This message was sent from an external source. Please verify the source before clicking any links or opening 
any attachments. NEVER provide account credentials or sensitive data unless the source has been 100% verified as 
legitimate.  



 

Summary 
I have background in local community work, volunteerism, and advocacy work. My 

disability and local community work are both central to my life. Some of my most 

helpful skill-sets have been utilizing digital platforms to foster knowledge on 

accessibility and being familiarized with local organizing. Seeking to apply my 

volunteerism skill-sets and advocacy work to this Committee.  

Relevant Experience  
The Girl in the Pink Wheelchair — 2012 
I founded this for disabled women and girls to share their voices, stories etc. 

Through this platform, I’ve been able to share my own writing, fundraisers for those 

in the disabled community, and make content that’s relevant to issues affecting 

disabled people. I founded this organization because I believe that issues affecting 

disabled women are especially important. As someone with a physical disability and 

dependent on a mobility aid, I find it immensely important for there to be positive 

advocates and platforms.   

Delmarva COVID-19 Crafters & Volunteers — 2020 
In March of 2020, I created a PPE local grassroots organization after We are now the 

largest PPE Drive on the Eastern Shore. We’re also a regional affiliate of “Get Us 

PPE (the largest PPE org) and and a regional affiliate of Open Source Medical 

Supplies.  

Vulnerable Population Taskforce — 2020 
I have been an active member of Salisbury’s Vulnerable Population Taskforce since 

its creations. Some of the things that I have worked with on the Taskforce have been 

supplying PPE, using some of my graphic design skills, and fostering conversation 

that fosters an intersectional definition of “accessible.”  

Skills 
Familiarized with using accessible language on digital media; i.e. Image Descriptions, 

proficient with digital resources such as social media and graphic design, 

intermediate level of Italian, creative, organized 

484-632-4945 
dominiquesessa@icloud.
com 
 
1416 Beckford Ct 
Salisbury, MD 
21804 

DOMINIQUE SESSA 

mailto:dominiquesessa@icloud.com
mailto:dominiquesessa@icloud.com


RESOLUTION NO. 3074 1 
 2 

 BE IT RESOLVED, by the Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland that the 3 
following individual is appointed to the City Parks & Recreation Committee for the term 4 
ending as indicated. 5 
 6 
  Name      Term Ending 7 
  Dominique Sessa    November 2023 8 
   9 
 10 
 THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the 11 
Council of the City of Salisbury, Maryland held on November ___________, 2020. 12 
 13 
ATTEST: 14 
 15 
 16 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 17 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 18 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 19 
 20 
 21 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 22 
 23 
__________ day of ______, 2020 24 
 25 
 26 
______________________________________ 27 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator, for and at the 28 
direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor 29 



 

 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA – Department of Procurement 

November 9, 2020 

 
Declaration of Surplus 

1. Department of Field Operations - Misc. Vehicles & Equipment 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 
 

To:   Mayor and City Council 
From:  Jennifer Miller 

Director of Procurement 
Date:  November 9, 2020 
Subject:  Declaration of Surplus 
  Vehicles and Equipment 
 
The Department of Procurement received a request from the Department of Field Operations to declare 
4 vehicles and 33 various items as surplus.  These items have been surpassed their useful life, are in poor 
condition, or the costs to bring them back to an operable condition could exceed their current value.  
Known identification information is included on the attachment for each item where possible. Additional 
details are in the departmental memo.  

Upon declaration of surplus, as approved by Council, the Department of Procurement will attempt to 
sell the items via an auction sale.  If unsellable through an auction service, they will be sold locally as 
salvage.  

 
  
 

 

 



   

                             MEMORANDUM 
                        
                         
 

 To:          Jennifer Miller, Director, Department of Procurement 

 From:     Tom Stevenson, Director, Department of Field Operations 

 Subject:  Surplus Vehicles and Equipment 

Date: October 27, 2020 

 
 

Over the past several years the Department of Public Works (DPW) and/or Field Operations 
(DFO) have decommissioned several vehicles and equipment. While of some value, all have far 
exceeded their useful life. Through several budget cycles most if not all of them were replaced 
with like-kind units. 
 
Although it would have been prudent, the items were not immediately recommended for 
surplus. Nevertheless, we have accumulated a substantial number of items on campus and 
would like to move forward with removing them. A listing of the items is attached for your 
examination.  
 
As you know, per the City of Salisbury Charter, Article XVI/SC16-8, upon a favorable 
recommendation from the Director of Procurement, obsolete or unused city property which is 
listed on the city’s capital assets inventory shall be sold or otherwise disposed of with approval 
from the Council. 
 
Charter/Code language provided for convenience: 
 

Surplus, obsolete or unused city property listed on the city’s capital assets inventory shall 
be sold or otherwise disposed of only upon recommendation of the Director of 
Procurement and after approval of the Council. If saleable, such property shall be sold 
for the city’s account by the Department of Procurement, subject to the applicable 
provisions of this Article as to competitive bidding; but if not saleable may be 
abandoned, destroyed or otherwise disposed of.  

 
Considering a good portion of the items were stored at the Service Center before the 
Department of Field Operations was created in July of 2018, I respectfully request some leeway 
with regard to providing the customary accompanying information. In particular, some 
instances it will be difficult to assign a value to the article.  
 



VEHICLES AND LARGE EQUIPMENT

VEHICLE I.D. YEAR DESCRIPTION MAKE MODEL SERIAL # CONDITION MILES/HOURS ID NO. ENGINE

E-1 2000 SUV Ford Explorer XLT 1FMZU83P0YUB82236 Surpassed Service Life 62809 mi 60057
PM-24 2000 3/4 Ton Pick-up Truck Chevy Silverado 4WD 1GCGK24U7YZ254345 Surpassed Service Life 107236 mi 60092
WP-2 2001 F-250 Pick-up Truck Ford F-250 1FTNF21L51EC60312 Surpassed Service Life 19660 mi 61423
WP-9 2002 3/4 Ton Pick-up Truck Chevy Silverado 1500 2GCEC19V221260151 Surpassed Service Life 111798 mi 63694



SMALL EQUIPMENT

DESCRIPTION YEAR MAKE MODEL SERIAL # CONDITION MILES/HOURS ID NO. ENGINE

Mosquito Sprayer Unknown Unknown Unknown 50431 End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  
Gas 

Paint Sprayer Unknown Honda 5.5 hp BA3426 End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  
 Gas

Sump Pump 3" w/ Engine  Unknown Wacker/Honda 4 hp 5159539 End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  
 Gas

Plate Tamper Unknown Wacker Unknown 5069266 End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  
N/A

Zero Steer Mower, 72", Number 1 Unknown Toro Ground Master 61240 End of Useful Life N/A PM-8 Gas 
Zero Steer Mower, 72", Number 1 Unknown Toro Ground Master 260000275 End of Useful Life N/A PM-12 Gas 

Cozy Cab Unknown Toro Unknown 876 End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  
N/A

International Generator Unknown International Unknown N/A End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  
Gas

Green Generator Unknown Unknown Unknown N/A End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  
Gas

Jumping Jack Tamp  Unknown Bobcat/Honda BR-72/GX 120 LD0019 End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  
Gas

Portable Generator TG2 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013229 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG3 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013231 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG4 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013230 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG5 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013255 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG6 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013254 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG7 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013282 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG11 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013251 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG12 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013250 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG13 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013161 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG14 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013160 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG15 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013264 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG16 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013167 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG17 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1010013266 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG19 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1011889892 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG20 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1011889939 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG21 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1009659402 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG24 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1011889937 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG25 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1011889938 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Portable Generator TG27 Unknown Briggs & Stratten 01654 1011889942 Working N/A
Not 

Assigned  
Pick-up Truck Bed Tool Box, 57”x19” 
Includes keys

Tractor Supply Functional N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Tamp Unknown Mikasa Sangyo 60L U 7089 End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Pavement Marking Grinder Unknown Edco TLR7-11H 1686 End of Useful Life N/A
Not 

Assigned  

Motorized Tape Line Applicator Unknown Unknown Unknown Unknown Missing Parts N/A
Not 

Assigned  



   

                             MEMORANDUM 
                        
                         
 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 

From: Laura Baasland, Department of Water Works Program Specialist 

Subject: Amending the Bylaws of the Human Rights Advisory Committee 

Date: November 4, 2020 

At the last meeting of the Human Rights Advisory Committee on September 17, 2020, the committee unanimously 
carried a motion to amend the committee’s bylaws, and is recommending that the Mayor’s Office approve these 
amendments and send them to City Council for adoption.  
 
The first proposed amendment is that section 1.a – Membership remove the requirement to have “at least one (1) 
high school student” and change it to read “at least one (1) youth representative aged 16-24 years.” This 
requirement to have at least one high school student appointed to the committee was put in place with the 
intention of ensuring that the youth voice would be represented on the committee. However, it has proven 
impractical to specifically require that the member be a high school student, and the committee has been unable 
to fulfill this particular membership requirement, so the position has remained vacant. The committee is confident 
that by lifting the requirement of having one member that is a high school student and instead changing the 
bylaws to require one youth representative, that it will have more success in finding a candidate to fill the position 
while still retaining the original intent of the provision.  
 
Secondly, the committee proposes that section 1.a – Membership also remove the clause that reads “members 
shall serve staggered terms of four (4) years; eight (8) members will serve four (4) year terms beginning and ending 
in even years, and seven (7) members will serve four (4) year terms beginning and ending in odd years. If a 
member resigns from the committee in the middle of a term, their replacement will serve the remaining length of 
the resigning member’s term.” Instead, the committee would like this clause to be replaced with “Members shall 
serve two (2) year terms.” The committee feels that it is in its own best interest to shorten the terms of its 
members in order to keep membership revolving to best ensure the flow of fresh ideas and input. Shorter term 
lengths will also potentially allow for more community members to serve on the committee and therefore for 
wider community representation to be had. Lastly, the committee feels that by simplifying the term requirements, 
membership will be easier to manager from a practical standpoint, especially considering this a large committee, 
reaching thirteen (13) members at full capacity.  
 
Attached you will find a copy of City Resolution No. 2653, which established the Human Rights Advisory Committee 
and its original bylaws, as well as a draft resolution to bring before City Council. I am happy to answer any 
questions you may have about the committee’s proposed amendments to its bylaws.  
 
Attachment 
 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 3075 1 
 2 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND TO 3 
AMEND THE BYLAWS OF THE HUMAN RIGHTS ADVISORY COMMITTEE TO 4 
CHANGE THE COMMITTEE’S MEMBERSHIP REQUIREMENTS AND TERMS.  5 
 6 
WHEREAS, on August 10, 2016 the Mayor and Council of the City of Salisbury adopted 7 
Resolution No. 2653 creating the Human Rights Advisory Committee; and 8 
 9 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the Committee is to advise the Mayor on equity and inclusionary 10 
strategies that will strengthen connections among diverse communities living in the City, protect 11 
and safeguard the right and opportunity of all persons to be free from all forms of discrimination, 12 
to advocate for its citizens at all levels of government who have been victims of discrimination, 13 
and the identify and work with community partners to find opportunities to create a more 14 
inclusive and diverse community; and 15 
 16 
WHEREAS, the membership of the Human Rights Advisory Committee would be enhanced by 17 
lifting the requirement to retain a high school student as a representative and instead change that 18 
clause to require a person aged 16-24 years be a member of the committee, thus allowing the 19 
Committee to more readily fill that position while still ensuring that youth voices are 20 
represented; and 21 
 22 
WHEREAS, the functionality of the Human Rights Advisory Committee would benefit from 23 
reducing term lengths from four (4) to two (2) years to ensure that a diverse range of community 24 
members are able to be represented on the Committee. 25 
 26 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Salisbury, 27 
Maryland that the bylaws of Human Rights Advisory Committee be amended to reflect the 28 
changes to section 1.a – Membership as follows: 29 
 30 

Section 1. Membership 31 
 32 

a. The Human Rights Advisory Committee (“the Committee”) shall consist of thirteen 33 
(13) members. The Members shall be authorized and appointed by the Mayor and 34 
approved by the Council. The membership shall include at least two (2) 35 
representatives of racial or national minorities; at least two (2) representatives from 36 
the LGBTQ+ community; at least one (1)high school student representative aged 37 
16-24 years; and at least two (2) members of local religious organizations. Members 38 
shall serve staggered terms of fourtwo (42) years,; eight (8) members will serve 39 
four (4) year terms beginning and ending in even years, and seven (7) members 40 
will serve four (4) year terms beginning and ending in odd years. If a member 41 
resigns from the committee in the middle of a term, their replacement will serve 42 
the remaining length of the resigning member’s term. at which point the member 43 
may choose whether  to apply for a subsequent term.   44 

 45 
 46 



THE ABOVE RESOLUTION was introduced and duly passed at a meeting of the Council of the 1 
City of Salisbury, Maryland held on November ___, 2020 and is to become effective 2 
immediately. 3 
 4 
ATTEST: 5 
 6 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 7 
Kimberly R. Nichols     John R. Heath 8 
CITY CLERK      PRESIDENT, City Council 9 
 10 
APPROVED BY ME THIS 11 
 12 
___ day of November, 2020 13 
 14 
 15 
_____________________________ 16 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator for and 17 
at the direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor 18 































December 14





APPROVED BY ME this _______ day of ____________________, 2020 82 
 83 
 84 
__________________________________________ 85 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator, for and at the  86 
direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor 87 





























1 

RESOLUTION NO.  3066 1 

2 
A RESOLUTION of the City of Salisbury to adopt an annexation plan 3 

for a certain area of land contiguous to and binding upon the 4 

Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to be known as the “Hall 5 

Drive – Long Property Annexation” beginning for the same at a point 6 

on the Corporate Limit, said point lying on the westerly side of South 7 

Division St., said point being across from the southwesterly corner of 8 

Lot 1, Block ‘C’ of “Wicomico Commons” subdivision and also being a 9 

corner of the existing Corporate Limits Line of the City of Salisbury, 10 

MD, continuing around the perimeter of the affected property to the 11 

point of beginning containing all of Map 048 -Parcels 208 and 067, 12 

containing 1.260 acres, more or less. 13 

WHEREAS the City of Salisbury is considering the annexation of a parcel of land 14 

binding upon the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to be known as “Hall Drive – Long 15 

Property Annexation” beginning for the same at a point on the Corporate Limit, said point 16 

lying on the westerly side of South Division St., said point being across from the 17 

southwesterly corner of Lot 1, Block ‘C’ of “Wicomico Commons” subdivision and also being 18 

a corner of the existing Corporate Limits Line of the City of Salisbury, MD, continuing 19 

around the perimeter of the affected property to the point of beginning containing all of 20 

Map 048 -Parcels 208 and 067, containing 1.260 acres, more or less and being more 21 

particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof; and  22 

WHEREAS the City of Salisbury is required to adopt an annexation plan for the 23 

proposed area of annexation pursuant to the Local Government Article of the Maryland 24 

Annotated Code; and  25 

WHEREAS the public hearing required pursuant to the law is scheduled for 26 

__________________ _____, 2020 at 6:00p.m. 27 December 14



2 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY 28 

THAT an annexation plan for the “Hall Drive – Long Property Annexation,” as set forth in 29 

Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part hereof, is adopted for that area of land located 30 

and binding upon the Corporate Limit of the City of Salisbury to be known as “Hall Drive – 31 

Long Property Annexation” beginning for the same at a point on the Corporate Limit, said 32 

point lying on the westerly side of South Division St. said point being across from the 33 

southwesterly corner of Lot 1, Block ‘C’ of “Wicomico Commons” subdivision and also being 34 

a corner of the existing Corporate Limits Line of the City of Salisbury, MD, continuing 35 

around the perimeter of the affected property to the point of beginning containing all of 36 

Map 048 -Parcels 208 and 067, containing 1.260 acres, more or less being more 37 

particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof; and  38 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF SALISBURY, THAT the Council 39 

shall hold a public hearing on the annexation plan hereby proposed on ______________ _____, 40 

2020 at 6:00p.m. in the Council Chambers at the City-County Office Building and the City 41 

Administrator shall cause a public notice of time and place of said hearing to be published 42 

not fewer than two (2) times at not less than weekly intervals, in a newspaper of general 43 

circulation in the City of Salisbury, which said notice shall specify a time and place at which 44 

the Council of the City of Salisbury will hold a public hearing on the Resolution. 45 

 The above Resolution was introduced and read and passed at the regular meeting of 46 

the Council of the City of Salisbury held on the __________________ _____, 2020, having been duly 47 

published as required by law in the meantime a public hearing was held on __________________ 48 

_____, 2020, and was finally passed by the Council at its regular meeting held on the 49 

_________________ _____,2020. 50 

December 14



3 

___________________________________ ___________________________________ 51 

Kimberly R. Nichols,       John R. Heath, 52 

City Clerk        Council President 53 

54 

55 

56 

57 

58 

59 

APPROVED BY ME this _____ day of __________________, 2020. 

_____________________________________________________ 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator, 

60 

for and at the
direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor







ORDINANCE NO. 2626 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO 3 
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE WICOMICO COUNTY HEALTH DEPARTMENT FOR 4 
THE PURPOSE OF ACCEPTING GRANT FUNDS IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,951.28, AND TO 5 
APPROVE A BUDGET AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2021 GRANT FUND TO APPROPRIATE 6 
THESE FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE OF TWO (2) COMMERCIAL GRADE 7 
WASHER/EXTRACTORS AND DRYERS.  8 

 9 
WHEREAS, the Wicomico County Health Department (WiCHD) received a direct allocation 10 

of funds through the Federal Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF); and  11 
 12 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the CRF is to help support Emergency medical response expenses, 13 

including emergency medical transportation, related to COVID-19; and  14 
 15 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury Fire Department submitted a grant request to the WiCHD 16 

for funding to assist with the purchase of a commercial grade washer/extractor and dryer for two (2) 17 
of our fire stations; and 18 

 19 
WHEREAS, the WiCHD has awarded the City funds in the amount of $24,951.28; and 20 
 21 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury must enter into a grant agreement with the WiCHD defining 22 

how these funds must be expended; and 23 
 24 
WHEREAS, § 7-29 of the Salisbury City Charter prohibits the City from entering into a 25 

contract that requires an expenditure not appropriated or authorized by the City Council; and 26 
 27 
WHEREAS, appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of this grant must be made upon 28 

the recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of 29 
Salisbury. 30 

 31 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 32 

SALISBURY, MARYLAND, THAT Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to enter into a grant 33 
agreement with the Wicomico County Health Department (WiCHD) to accept grant funds in the 34 
amount of $24,951.28. 35 

 36 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the City’s Fiscal Year 2021 Grant Fund Budget be and 37 

hereby is amended as follows: 38 
 39 
1) Increase Wicomico County Health Department Revenue account  40 

(10500–427901–XXXXX) by $24,951.28 41 
2) Increase SFD Equipment Expense account  42 

(10500-577030-XXXXX) by $24,951.28 43 
 44 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of 45 
its final passage. 46 

 47 
THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a meeting of the Council of the City of 48 

Salisbury held on this 26th day of October, 2020, and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the 49 



Ordinance having been published as required by law, was finally passed by the Council on the  50 
  day of    , 2020. 51 
 52 
ATTEST: 53 
 54 
 55 
          56 
Kimberly R. Nichols John R. Heath, President 57 
City Clerk       Salisbury City Council 58 
 59 
 60 
APPROVED BY ME THIS    day of    , 2020. 61 
 62 
 63 
     64 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator 65 
for and at the direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor 66 
 67 



ORDINANCE NO. 2627 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER 3 
INTO A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH THE WICOMICO COUNTY HEALTH 4 
DEPARTMENT AND APPROVING A BUDGET AMENDMENT OF THE FY2021 GENERAL FUND 5 
BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS RECEIVED FROM THE WICOMICO COUNTY HEALTH 6 
DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $7,500.00. 7 
 8 

WHEREAS, the funds have been provided by the Wicomico County Health Department 9 
(WiCHD), in conjunction with Mid-Shore Behavioral Health, Inc., for a Safe Station Program; 10 
and 11 
 12 

WHEREAS, Safe Station is an innovative program that helps remove barriers to 13 
treatment for members of our community who are eager to recover from a substance use 14 
disorder; and 15 
 16 
 WHEREAS, the goal of the Safe Station is to help people with linkage to treatment and 17 
recovery services by allowing them to practice self-determination; and 18 
 19 

WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury Fire Department will provide non-emergent medical 20 
checks to all individuals that enter the Safe Station; and 21 

 22 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury must enter into a grant agreement with the Wicomico 23 

County Health Department defining how these funds must be expended; and 24 
 25 
WHEREAS, the accepted funds shall be used to purchase additional emergency medical 26 

supplies and equipment; and 27 
 28 

 WHEREAS, both the Fire Chief and the Mayor have recommended that the City accept 29 
the monetary donation and allocate the funds to the Fire Department’s FY2021 Operating 30 
Budget; and 31 
 32 
 WHEREAS, § 7-29 of the Salisbury City Charter forbids contracts requiring an 33 
expenditure in excess of the amount appropriated for that general classification or expenditure, 34 
and forbids any office, department, or agency from expending funds not appropriated; and  35 
 36 
 WHEREAS, appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of this grant must be made 37 
upon the recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City 38 
of Salisbury. 39 
 40 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 41 
OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND, THAT Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to enter into 42 
a Memorandum of Understanding with the Wicomico County Health Department to accept funds 43 
in the amount of $7,500.00. 44 
 45 
 46 



 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED THAT THE City’s Fiscal Year 2021 General Fund 47 
Budget be amended as follows: 48 
 49 
1) Increase FY2021 General Fund WiCHD Reimbursements account (01000-427301) by 50 
$7,500.00 51 
2) Increase Fire Department Expenditure Medical account (24035-546016) by $7,500.00 52 
  53 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect from and after the 54 
date of its final passage. 55 
 56 

THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a meeting of the Council of the City of 57 
Salisbury held on this  26th  day of October, 2020 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of 58 
the Ordinance having been published as required by law, was finally passed by the Council on 59 
the    day of   , 2020. 60 
  61 
ATTEST: 62 
 63 
___________________________________  __________________________________ 64 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk   John R. Heath, President 65 
City Council      Salisbury City Council 66 
 67 
 68 
APPROVED BY ME THIS    day of    , 2020. 69 
 70 
 71 
 72 
     73 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator 74 
for and at the direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor 75 



ORDINANCE NO. 2628 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING A BUDGET AMENDMENT 3 
OF THE GRANT FUND TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS TO OPERATE THE SALISBURY-WICOMICO 4 
FIRSTCARE TEAM (SWIFT).  5 

 6 
WHEREAS, the Wicomico County Health Department (WiCHD), in conjunction with the City 7 

of Salisbury, applied for funds through the Maryland Community Health Resources Commission 8 
(CHRC) grant program; and 9 

 10 
WHEREAS, the CHRC awarded the WiCHD funds in FY2018 in the amount of $90,000; and  11 
 12 
WHEREAS, the WiCHD has previously sub-granted $81,920 to the City of Salisbury, those 13 

funds being appropriated via Ordinance 2503 and Ordinance 2559; and 14 
 15 
WHEREAS, of the remaining $8,080 of FY2018 funding that was received by the WiCHD from 16 

the CHRC, the WiCHD is now sub-granting $4,600.00 to the City of Salisbury; and  17 
 18 
WHEREAS, these funds are to be added to existing SWIFT grant project account #21009; and  19 
 20 
WHEREAS, the sub-granted funds shall be used to operate the Salisbury-Wicomico Firstcare 21 

Team (SWIFT); and 22 
 23 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury must enter into a sub-grant agreement with WiCHD defining 24 

how these funds must be expended; and 25 
 26 
WHEREAS, § 7-29 of the Salisbury City Charter prohibits the City from entering into a contract 27 

that requires an expenditure not appropriated or authorized by the City Council; and 28 
 29 
WHEREAS, appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of this grant must be made upon 30 

the recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of 31 
Salisbury. 32 

 33 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 34 

SALISBURY, MARYLAND, THAT Mayor Jacob R. Day is hereby authorized to enter into a sub-grant 35 
agreement with the Wicomico County Health Department to accept and expend grant funds in the 36 
amount of $4,600.00. 37 
 38 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the City’s FY21 Grant Fund Budget be and hereby is 39 
amended as follows: 40 

 41 
1) Increase WiCHD SWIFT Grant Revenue account  42 

(10500–427901–21009) by $4,600.00  43 
2) Increase SWIFT Equipment Expense account 44 

(10500–577303–21009) by $4,600.00 45 
 46 



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of 47 
its final passage. 48 

 49 
THIS ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a meeting of the Council of the City of 50 

Salisbury held on this 26th day of October, 2020, and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the 51 
Ordinance having been published as required by law, was finally passed by the Council on the ____ 52 
day of     , 2020. 53 
 54 
 55 
ATTEST: 56 
 57 
 58 
___________________________________  __________________________________ 59 
Kimberly R. Nichols,     John R. Heath, President 60 
City Clerk       Salisbury City Council 61 
 62 
 63 
APPROVED BY ME THIS ____ day of _______, 2020. 64 
 65 
 66 
________________________________________ 67 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator 68 
for and at the direction of Jacob R. Day, Mayor 69 
 70 



 

 

 

To: Julia Glanz, City Administrator 
From:  Amanda Pollack, P.E., Director of Infrastructure and Development 
Date: October 21, 2020 
Re:  Ordinance to Accept MDOT Bikeways Funds and Allocate Reimbursements to Bikeways 

Implementation Accounts 
              
 

The Department of Infrastructure and Development is in the process of implementing the 

Salisbury Bicycle Network Plan which was adopted by Council via Resolution No. 2712 on 

December 13, 2016.  To assist with implementation, the City is seeking grant funding. 

 

In June 2020, the Department of Infrastructure and Development applied for two grants 

from the Maryland Bikeways Program to provide funding for final design of the Rail Trail, 

Phase 1 and W College Ave Bikeway projects. The Maryland Department of Transportation 

(MDOT) approved these grants in the amount of $125,957.60 and $29,608.00.  The City will 

provide matching funds of 20%.  The match totals are $31,489.40 for the Rail Trail, Phase 1 

Project and $7,402.00 for the College Ave Bikeway Project.  The total project costs are 

therefore $157,447.00 and $37,010.00 respectively.  The Office of Planning and Capital 

Programming of the Maryland Department of Transportation prepared the attached Grant 

Agreement after MDOT’s review and approval of the design RFP. 

 

The Scope of Work identified within these Grant Agreements includes the final design of the 

Rail Trail, Phase 1 project, which will extend the existing trail in Fruitland to Milford St, and 

design of the College Ave bikeway which will extend from Riverside Dr to US 13 Business.  

Please find attached an Ordinance to authorize the Mayor to sign the Grant Agreements with 

MDOT and to accept the Maryland Bikeways Program Grants via budget amendment. 

 

These are reimbursement-based grants; therefore the City shall pay the contractor and then 

submit for periodic reimbursements from MDOT.  For the Rail Trail grant, the match will be 

funded from the FY21 Rail Trail Master Plan Implementation account and via in kind funds.  

For the College Avenue grant, the match will be funded from the Street Maintenance 

account and via in kind funds.  The City will provide in-kind services via project management 

and coordination.  Department of Infrastructure and Development recommends approval of 

the grant agreements. 

 

Unless you or the Mayor has further questions, please forward this memo, ordinance and 

grant agreements to City Council.  



ORDINANCE NO. 2629 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY TO AUTHORIZE THE MAYOR TO SIGN 3 
THE GRANT AGREEMENTS, TO ACCEPT TWO GRANTS IN THE TOTAL SUM OF 4 
$155,565.60 FROM THE MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (MDOT) 5 
MARYLAND BIKEWAYS PROGRAM FOR THE DESIGN OF THE RAIL TRAIL, PHASE 1 6 
AND WEST COLLEGE AVENUE BIKEWAY PROJECTS, AND TO APPROVE AN 7 
AMENDMENT OF THE FY21 BUDGET TO ALLOCATE SAID FUNDS FOR PURPOSES OF 8 
IMPLEMENTATION.  9 
 10 
 WHEREAS, the Maryland Department of Transportation has a Maryland Bikeways 11 
Program for providing grant funds to support and expedite projects improving bicycle and 12 
pedestrian transportation in the State; and 13 
 14 
 WHEREAS, the Maryland Department of Transportation and the City of Salisbury have 15 
been working together to improve bicycle connectivity throughout the City of Salisbury; and 16 
 17 

WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury desires to implement a bike route along a railway that 18 
runs north-south through the City; and 19 

 20 
WHEREAS, the City of Salisbury desires to implement a bike route along West College 21 

Avenue serving Salisbury University and the City at-large; and 22 
 23 
 WHEREAS, the Projects will enhance bicycle safety and access to the population of the 24 
City; and 25 
 26 
 WHEREAS, the Maryland Bikeways Program has awarded grants in the total amount of 27 
$155,565.60 to provide for the design of the West College Avenue and Rail Trail, Phase 1 28 
Bikeway Projects; and 29 
 30 

WHEREAS, the City shall accept the grant in the form of reimbursements and transfer 31 
those funds from the MDOT Reimbursement account to the Bikeways Capital Projects Account; 32 
and 33 

 34 
WHEREAS, § 7-29 of the Salisbury City Charter prohibits the City from entering into an 35 

contract that requires an expenditure not appropriated or authorized by the City Council; and 36 
 37 

WHEREAS, appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of these grants must be 38 
made upon the recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of 39 
the City of Salisbury. 40 

 41 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED AND ORDAINED that the City Council of the 42 
City of Salisbury, Maryland does hereby authorize the Mayor to sign the attached Grant 43 
Agreement dated _________, 2020 accepting the project term and definition of matching funds, 44 
for the betterment of the City and its residents, and accepting the grant funds of $155,565.60 45 
from the Maryland Bikeways Program to design the West College Avenue and Rail Trail, Phase 46 



1 Bikeway Projects and further authorizes grant reimbursements to be transferred to the 47 
appropriate Bikeways Capital Projects Account. 48 
 49 
 BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that the City's FY2021 Grant Fund Budget be amended 50 
as follows: 51 
 52 
 
Account No 

 
Account Description  

Account 
Type 

Increase/ 
Decrease 

 
Amount 

Maryland Bikeways Program Grant College Avenue 
10500-425805-xxxxx MD Dept. of Transportation  Revenue Increase 29,608.00 
10500-513026-xxxxx Construction Expense Increase 29,608.00 
FY20 Maryland Bikeways Program Grant Rail Trail   
10500-425805-xxxxx MD Dept. of Transportation  Revenue Increase 125,957.60 
10500-513026-xxxxx Construction Expense Increase 125,957.60 

 53 
 AND BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect from and after 54 
the date of its final passage. 55 
 56 
 THE ABOVE ORDINANCE was introduced and read at a meeting of the Council of the 57 
City of Salisbury held on the 9th day of November, 2020, and thereafter, a statement of the 58 
substance of the Ordinance having been published as required by law, was finally passed by the 59 
Council on the ____ day of ___________, 2020. 60 
 61 
ATTEST: 62 
 63 
 64 
__________________________  ____________________________ 65 
Kimberly R. Nichols    John R. Heath 66 
CITY CLERK     PRESIDENT, City Council 67 
 68 
 69 
APPROVED by me this ______ day of ____________, 2020 70 
 71 
 72 
__________________________ 73 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator 74 
on behalf and at the direction of  75 
Jacob R. Day, MAYOR 76 



GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

BY AND BETWEEN 

 

THE MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

AND 

 

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 

 

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT executed in triplicate and entered into this             day of 

____________, 20__, by and between the Maryland Department of Transportation 

(“Department” or “MDOT”) and the City of Salisbury (“Grantee”), Maryland.  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Department has programmed in the FY 2021-2026 Draft Consolidated 

Transportation Program-2021 State Report on Transportation a total of Eight Million Two 

Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand Dollars ($8,268,000) for the Maryland Kim Lamphier Bikeways 

Network Program (“Program”); 

WHEREAS, the Department budgeted within the Program One Hundred Twenty-Five 

Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty Seven Dollars and Sixty Cents ($125,957.60) for the Rail Trail 

Phase 1, a Design project for the Final Design of an off-road shared-use path along a railroad bed 

from the southern city limit north to Milford Street; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-602 of the Transportation Article of the Annotated 

Code of Maryland, it is in the public interest for the State of Maryland to include enhanced 

transportation facilities for pedestrians and bicycle riders as an essential component of the State’s 

transportation system;  

WHEREAS, the Maryland Bikeways Program was established and approved by the 

General Assembly to provide state transportation funding to support and expedite projects that 

improve bicycle transportation in the State;  

WHEREAS, the Grantee has committed a matching fund contribution of Thirty One 

Thousand Four Hundred Eighty Nine Dollars and Forty Cents ($31,489.40) (“Matching Fund 

Contribution”) to the Project; 

WHEREAS, the total Project cost estimate (“Estimate”) as set forth in the Grantee’s grant 

application, and accepted by MDOT is One Hundred Fifty-Seven Thousand Four Hundred Forty-

Seven Dollars ($157,447.00); 

WHEREAS, the Project will develop the Final Design of an off-road shared-use path 

from the southern city limit north to Milford Street, approximately 750 linear feet of existing 

path is planned to be updated and 2,250 feet of new path will be constructed in City rights-of-



 2 

way and across University owned property.  35% Plans already exist.  The path will serve the 

need for safe connection for the Salisbury University student population and the general public.  

WHEREAS, the Project is consistent with the 2017 Salisbury Bike Master Plan, the 

Urban Greenway Plan, is the focus of the Rail Trail Master Plan, and includes opportunities for 

public input;  

WHEREAS, the Grantee is responsible for securing all right-of way and obtaining a 

Right-of-Way Certification Letter in coordination with the MDOT State Highway 

Administration Office of Real Estate; 

WHEREAS, the Grantee will assume all maintenance and operating costs associated with 

the Project when it is completed; 

WHEREAS, the Project is a valuable component of Maryland’s transportation system;  

 WHEREAS, the Department has supported similar projects in various locations in the 

State;  

 WHEREAS, the Department and the Grantee agree that the Project will benefit the 

parties to this Agreement and will promote the safety, health, and general welfare of the citizens 

of the State of Maryland;  

WHEREAS, Section 2-103(i) of the Transportation Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland (2015 Replacement Volume, as amended and supplemented), authorizes the Secretary 

of Transportation, to the extent permitted by the State budget, to make grants-in-aid to any 

person, including political subdivisions of the State of Maryland, for any transportation related 

purpose;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH:  That for and in 

consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 

1. The above recitals are re-affirmed and incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The Department hereby grants to the Grantee a sum not to exceed One Hundred 

Twenty-Five Thousand Nine Hundred Fifty-Seven Dollars and Sixty Cents 

($125,957.60) (“Grant”) to be used by the Grantee for the completion of the 

Project.  The Grantee shall be responsible for all work in connection with the 

Project, including the following: 

a. Provide opportunities for community input on preliminary recommendations 

and semi-final design; 

 

b. Submit 90% design plans to the MDOT Kim Lamphier Bikeways Network 

Program for review; 



 3 

 

c. Submit final design plans along with responses to MDOT comments on 90% 

design plan review; 

 

d. Preparation of quarterly status reports and a final report, as requested by the 

Department; and 

 

e. Monitoring and supervising the compliance with all provisions in this 

Agreement. 

 

3. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the maximum amount payable 

by the Department under this Grant Agreement shall be the lesser of $125,957.60 or 80% of the 

Project’s total cost. 

 

4. The Project shall be consistent with relevant design standards and guidelines, 

including 2012 American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) 

Bicycle Design Guidelines, the Association of Pedestrian and Bicycle Professionals Bicycle 

Parking Guidelines, the Maryland Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices, and the Access 

Board Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (ANPRM) on Accessibility Guideline for 

Shared Use Paths. 

 

5. The Grantee shall engage a professional engineer, registered in the State of 

Maryland, for design services on the Project.  The Grantee shall provide to the Department draft 

design plans for review and comment and final design plans for the Project record.  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Grantee shall have final rights of approval. 

6. Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Grantee shall require all 

contractors and subcontractors to secure and keep in force during the term of this Agreement, 

from insurance companies, government self-insurance pools or government self-retention funds, 

authorized to do business in Maryland, the following insurance coverages:  

a. commercial general liability, including premises or operations, contractual, 

and products or completed operations coverages (if applicable), with 

minimum liability limits of $250,000 per person and $1,000,000 per 

occurrence; 

b. automobile liability, including Owned (if any), Hired, and Non-Owned 

automobiles, with minimum liability limits of $250,000 per person and 

$1,000,000 per occurrence; 

c. workers compensation coverage meeting all statutory requirements.  

This insurance may be in policy or policies of insurance, primary and excess, including the so-

called umbrella or catastrophe form and must be placed with insurers rated “A-” or better by 

A.M. Best Company, Inc., provided any excess policy follows form for coverage. The Grantee 



 4 

shall evidence limits of insurability for general liability coverage in an amount of $800,000 

aggregate and $400,000 each occurrence.  The Grantee shall have the right to self-insure. These 

are the maximum limits of liability for which the Grantee’s Self-Insurance Program is 

responsible, as determined by Section 5-301 et seq. of the Courts and Judicial Proceedings 

Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, also known as the “Local Government Tort Claims 

Act.” 

The Department and its agencies, officers, and employees shall be endorsed on the commercial 

general liability policies, including any excess policies (to the extent applicable), as an additional 

insured. Coverage will be primary and noncontributory with any other insurance and self-

insurance.  There will be no cancellation, material change, potential exhaustion of aggregate 

limits or non-renewal of insurance coverage(s) without thirty (30) days written notice to the 

Department.  Certificates of insurance shall be provided to the Department upon request.  All 

endorsements shall be provided as soon as practicable. Failure to provide insurance as required 

in this Agreement is a material breach of contract entitling the Department to terminate this 

Agreement. 

7. The Grant represents the maximum financial liability of the Department under 

this Agreement subject to, limited by and contingent upon the appropriation and availability of 

funds, as well as the types of liabilities, damage caps, and notice requirements stated in the 

Maryland Torts Claims Act (“MTCA”) currently found at the State Government Article, Section 

12-101 et seq. of the Maryland Annotated Code.   

8. The parties agree that the Grantee will utilize the Grant for the Project in 

conjunction with other funds it has obtained from funding sources other than the Maryland 

Bikeways Program to complete the Project. 

9. The Grantee shall maintain facilities and equipment funded through this Grant for 

the duration of their useful life, and in any event not less than five years.  At the request of the 

Department, the Grantee shall refund expenditures paid by the Department if Project facilities 

and equipment are not so maintained. 

10. The Grantee may use funds only for costs incurred in connection with the Project.  

Payment of the Grant by the Department shall be made on a reimbursable basis upon the 

Grantee’s submission of invoices for such payment, subject to the following conditions. 

All invoices for payment shall include: 

(a) actual expenditures incurred by the Grantee in connection with the Project; 

(b) a certification by the Grantee that all costs charged to the Project are in 

connection therewith and supported by properly executed records, 

vouchers, invoices or contracts evidencing the nature and propriety of the 

charges. 

Invoices/requests for reimbursement will be submitted not more frequently than once per 

month (30 days). Invoices/requests for reimbursement will be reviewed by MDOT to determine 

(a) that the indicated costs are allowable hereunder and (b) that the invoiced work contributes 



 5 

directly to the accomplishment of the Project.  Failure to meet these conditions will result in 

disallowed costs that will be deducted from the authorized appropriated amount.  Payment shall 

be made by the Department to the Grantee within thirty (30) days of the Department’s receipt 

and approval of the invoice and accompanying certifications. The final invoice may not be paid 

until documentation of the Matching Fund Contribution and the final report is submitted. No 

Project costs incurred prior to the execution of this Agreement will be reimbursed.   

11. The Grantee shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws in 

expending Grant funds and in carrying out the Project, including compliance with the Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, particularly as it relates to public meetings held in connection with 

the Project.  

12. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the date first set forth above 

and shall terminate when all payments of the Grant have been made or on December 31, 2022 

whichever is sooner. All work on the Project that is reimbursable under this Grant must be 

completed and all invoices/requests for reimbursement must be submitted by the Grantee before 

the grant termination date. Any invoices/requests for reimbursement submitted after the grant 

termination date will be identified as a disallowed cost and not processed for payment by 

MDOT. At its discretion, the Department may elect to extend the term of the Grant by up to six 

months, upon written notice by MDOT.  

13. The Department reserves the right to suspend or terminate all or part of the 

financial assistance herein provided and to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, if: 

(a) the Grantee breaches or fails to fulfill any of the terms of this Agreement; 

or 

(b) funds are not appropriated by the General Assembly of Maryland to fund 

this Grant.   

The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that funding under this Agreement is expressly 

dependent upon the availability to the Department of funds appropriated by the General 

Assembly and that, except as otherwise provided for herein, the Department shall not be liable 

for any breach of this Agreement due to the absence of an appropriation.  Termination of this 

Agreement will not invalidate obligations properly incurred by the Grantee prior to the date of 

termination if such obligations are unable to be canceled.  The acceptance of a remittance from 

the Department of any or all funds, or the closing out of the Department’s financial participation 

under this Agreement, shall not constitute a waiver of any claim that the Department may 

otherwise have against the Grantee arising out of this Agreement.  If, upon termination of this 

Agreement, it is determined by the Department that funds are due to the Department, the Grantee 

shall promptly remit such amount to the Department within forty-five (45) days following 

written notification to the Grantee from the Department.  The Grantee’s agreement to remit any 

excess Grant funds to the Department shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

In addition to the Department’s remedies under this Section, the Department may proceed 

to protect and enforce all rights available to it, by suit in equity, action in law or by any other 



 6 

appropriate proceedings, any or all of which may be exercised contemporaneously with each 

other and all of which rights and remedies shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

14. The Grantee shall maintain separate and complete accounting records that are 

consistent with generally accepted accounting procedures and accurately reflect all income and 

expenditures of Grant funds for the Project.  Grantee accounting records shall be maintained for 

a period of three (3) years after the termination of this Agreement.  The records of the Grantee 

must be in sufficient detail to determine the nature of the costs incurred and/or expenditures 

made by the Grantee for the Project. 

15. The Department reserves the right to perform interim and final audits of the Grant 

provided for under this Agreement.  Any final audit shall commence within three (3) years of the 

expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.  In connection with any audit undertaken 

hereunder, the Grantee shall provide access to all records with respect to the Project.  Following 

the completion of any audit undertaken hereunder, the Grantee shall refund to the Department 

within forty-five (45) days following notification by the Department any Grant payments that are 

found to be unsupported by acceptable accounting records or not expended in accordance with 

the terms of this Agreement.  The Grantee’s covenant to repay any excess Grant payments shall 

survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

16. This Agreement may be modified only by written instrument, executed by the 

Department and the Grantee, except for the Grant extension pursuant to paragraph 12. 

17. The Grantee shall, to the extent permitted by law, defend, indemnify, and hold 

harmless the Department, its officers, agents, and employees, from any and all claims, demands, 

suits, causes of action, liability, damages, losses, costs and expenses (including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees) of whatsoever nature, including, without limitation, those arising on account of 

any injury or death of persons or damage to property, caused by, arising out of, or resulting from 

any and all services and activities performed by the Grantee or its employees, agents, 

subcontractors, or consultants relating to the Project and this Agreement. 

 

18. It is understood and agreed that the sole obligation of the Department is the 

payment to the Grantee the sum of money specified in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

19. All payments hereunder by the Department to the Grantee are subject to the 

budgetary and appropriation requirements of Section 3-216(d)(2) of the Transportation Article of 

the Annotated Code of Maryland, (2015 Replacement Volume, as amended and supplemented). 

20. No right, benefit or advantage inuring to the Grantee under this Agreement may 

be assigned and no burden imposed on the Grantee hereunder may be delegated or assigned 

without the prior written approval of the Department. 

21. The parties hereby agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance 

with the law of the State of Maryland. 

22. As an inducement to the Department to make the Grant, the Grantee hereby 

certifies to the Department that: 



 7 

(a) any resolution, ordinance or other action which may be required by local 

law has been introduced and adopted, passed, enacted or taken as an 

official act of the Grantee’s governing body, authorizing the execution and 

delivery of this Agreement by the Grantee in such manner and form as to 

comply with all applicable laws to make this Agreement the valid and 

legally binding act and agreement of the Grantee; 

(b) no officer or employee of the Grantee, or its designees or agents, no 

consultants, no member of the Grantee’s governing body, and no other 

public official of the Grantee, who exercises any functions or 

responsibilities over the Project or the Grant shall have or obtain a 

personal or financial interest or benefit from any activity in connection 

with the Project or Grant or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or 

agreement with respect therewith; 

(c) the Grantee is not in arrears with respect to the payment of any moneys 

due and owing the State of Maryland, or any department or unit thereof, 

including, but not limited to, the payment of taxes and employee benefits, 

and that it shall not become so in arrears during the term of this 

Agreement. 

23. The Department and the Grantee certify that they prohibit, and covenant that they 

will continue to prohibit, discrimination on the basis of: 

(a) age, ancestry, color, creed, marital status, national origin, race or religious 

or political affiliation, belief or opinion, or sexual orientation; 

(b) sex or age, except when age or sex constitutes a bona fide occupational 

qualification; or 

(c) the physical or mental disability of a qualified individual with a disability.   

Upon the request of the other party, the Department and the Grantee will submit to the 

other party information relating to its operating policies and procedures with regard to age, 

ancestry, color, creed, marital status, mental or physical disability, national origin, race, religious 

or political affiliation, belief or opinion or sex or sexual orientation.  

24. The Department and the Grantee shall comply with the State’s policy concerning 

drug and alcohol free workplaces, as set forth in Executive Order 01.01.1989.18 and COMAR 

21.11.08, and must remain in compliance throughout the term of this Agreement. 

25. It is specifically agreed between the Department and the Grantee that it is not 

intended by any of the provisions of this Agreement to create in any public entity, or any 

member thereof, or in any private entity third party beneficiary status in connection with the 

performance of the obligations herein. 

26. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable 

by a court of competent jurisdiction: 



 8 

(a) such provision shall be fully severable; 

(b) this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid 

or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of this Agreement; 

and 

(c) the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 

effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable 

provision or by its severance from this Agreement. 

27. This Agreement may be executed in several identical counterparts, each of which 

shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute, collectively, one agreement. 

28. This Agreement shall inure to and be binding upon the parties hereto, their agents, 

successors and, to the extent an assignment has been approved pursuant to Section 20 of this 

Agreement, their assigns. 

29. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts; all such counterparts will be 

deemed one agreement. This agreement may be executed by facsimile or electronic (.pdf) 

signature and a facsimile or electronic (.pdf) signature will constitute an original for all purposes 

without delivery of an original signature being thereafter required. 

30. Each notice, invoice, demand, request, consent, approval, disapproval, 

designation or other communications between the parties, to the extent required to be in writing 

shall be made by United States Postal Mail to the following:   

In the case of MDOT: 

Heather Murphy, Director 

Office of Planning and Capital 

Programming 

7201 Corporate Center Drive 

Hanover, MD 21076 

 

In the case of the Grantee: 

William White 

Transportation Projects Specialist 

City of Salisbury 

125 N Division St. 

Salisbury, MD 21801

 

 

 

 

The next page is the signature page. 



 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

WITNESS:      

 

 

      By: 

Nate Evans Date  R. Earl Lewis, Jr.  Date 

Bikeways Program Manager       Deputy Secretary    

      

 

FUNDS AVAILABLE:   APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

 

 

       

Jaclyn Hartman, Chief Financial Officer     Brenden Lee Hodge, Assistant Attorney General 

Office of Finance        Maryland Department of Transportation 

  

 

 

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 

WITNESS THE CITY OF SALISBURY 

 

________________________________ By: _______________________________ 

        Julia Glanz   Date 

        City Administrator & Acting Mayor 

 

     



GRANT AGREEMENT 

 

BY AND BETWEEN 

 

THE MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

AND 

 

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 

 

THIS GRANT AGREEMENT executed in triplicate and entered into this             day of 

____________, 20__, by and between the Maryland Department of Transportation 

(“Department” or “MDOT”) and the City of Salisbury (“Grantee”), Maryland.  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Department has programmed in the FY 2021-2026 Draft Consolidated 

Transportation Program-2021 State Report on Transportation a total of Eight Million Two 

Hundred Sixty Eight Thousand Dollars ($8,268,000) for the Maryland Kim Lamphier Bikeways 

Network Program (“Program”); 

WHEREAS, the Department budgeted within the Program Twenty Nine Thousand Six 

Hundred Eight Dollars ($29,608) for the West College Avenue Bike Facility, a Design project 

described as a dedicated cycletrack and bike boulevard/greenway along W. College Avenue to 

connect Salisbury University to the Camden Avenue and Riverside Drive bike facilities (the 

“Project”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 2-602 of the Transportation Article of the Annotated 

Code of Maryland, it is in the public interest for the State of Maryland to include enhanced 

transportation facilities for pedestrians and bicycle riders as an essential component of the State’s 

transportation system;  

WHEREAS, the Maryland Bikeways Program was established and approved by the 

General Assembly to provide state transportation funding to support and expedite projects that 

improve bicycle transportation in the State;  

WHEREAS, the Grantee has committed a matching fund contribution of Seven Thousand 

Four Hundred Two Dollars ($7,402) (“Matching Fund Contribution”) to the Project; 

WHEREAS, the total Project cost estimate (“Estimate”) as set forth in the Grantee’s grant 

application and accepted by MDOT is Thirty Seven Thousand and Ten Dollars ($37,010); 

WHEREAS, the Project will facilitate safe access to the Main Salisbury University 

Campus, local parks, and shopping for students and residents of the surrounding neighborhoods.  

Traffic Calming, connection to the already established Camden Avenue and Riverside Drive bike 



 2 

lanes, and the potential reduction in Vehicle Miles Traveled are also expected benefits of the 

Project;  

WHEREAS, the Project is consistent with the 2017 Bike Master Plan, in which the 

facility was deemed a priority, as well as the City’s Vision Zero Action Plan, the Rail Trail 

Master Plan, the Eastern Shore Drive Visioning Study, and includes opportunities for public 

input;  

WHEREAS, the Grantee is responsible for securing all right-of way and obtaining a 

Right-of-Way Certification Letter in coordination with the MDOT State Highway 

Administration Office of Real Estate; 

WHEREAS, the Grantee will assume all maintenance and operating costs associated with 

the Project when it is completed; 

WHEREAS, the Project is a valuable component of Maryland’s transportation system;  

 WHEREAS, the Department has supported similar projects in various locations in the 

State;  

 WHEREAS, the Department and the Grantee agree that the Project will benefit the 

parties to this Agreement and will promote the safety, health, and general welfare of the citizens 

of the State of Maryland;  

WHEREAS, Section 2-103(i) of the Transportation Article of the Annotated Code of 

Maryland (2015 Replacement Volume, as amended and supplemented), authorizes the Secretary 

of Transportation, to the extent permitted by the State budget, to make grants-in-aid to any 

person, including political subdivisions of the State of Maryland, for any transportation related 

purpose;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH:  That for and in 

consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and other good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto 

agree as follows: 

1. The above recitals are re-affirmed and incorporated herein by reference. 

2. The Department hereby grants to the Grantee a sum not to exceed Twenty Nine 

Thousand Six Hundred Eight Dollars ($29,608) (“Grant”) to be used by the Grantee for the 

completion of the Project.  The Grantee shall be responsible for all work in connection with the 

Project, including the following: 

a. Provide opportunities for community input on semi-final design; 

 

b. Submit 90% design plans to the MDOT Kim Lamphier Bikeways Network 

Program for review; 

 



 3 

c. Submit final design plans along with responses to MDOT comments on 90% 

design plan review; 

 

d. Preparation of quarterly status reports and a final report, as requested by the 

Department; and 

 

e. Monitoring and supervising the compliance with all provisions in this Agreement. 

 

3. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the maximum amount payable 

by the Department under this Grant Agreement shall be the lesser of $29,608 or 80% of the 

Project’s total cost. 

 

4. The Project shall be consistent with relevant design standards and guidelines, 

including 2012 American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) 

Bicycle Design Guidelines, the Association of Pedestrian and Bicycle Professionals Bicycle 

Parking Guidelines, the Maryland Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices, and the Access 

Board Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (ANPRM) on Accessibility Guideline for 

Shared Use Paths. 

 

5. The Grantee shall engage a professional engineer, registered in the State of 

Maryland, for design services on the Project.  The Grantee shall provide to the Department draft 

design plans for review and comment and final design plans for the Project record.  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Grantee shall have final rights of approval. 

6. Prior to commencement of work on the Project, the Grantee shall require all 

contractors and subcontractors to secure and keep in force during the term of this Agreement, 

from insurance companies, government self-insurance pools or government self-retention funds, 

authorized to do business in Maryland, the following insurance coverages:  

a. commercial general liability, including premises or operations, contractual, 

and products or completed operations coverages (if applicable), with 

minimum liability limits of $250,000 per person and $1,000,000 per 

occurrence; 

b. automobile liability, including Owned (if any), Hired, and Non-Owned 

automobiles, with minimum liability limits of $250,000 per person and 

$1,000,000 per occurrence; 

c. workers compensation coverage meeting all statutory requirements.  

This insurance may be in policy or policies of insurance, primary and excess, including the so-

called umbrella or catastrophe form and must be placed with insurers rated “A-” or better by 

A.M. Best Company, Inc., provided any excess policy follows form for coverage. The Grantee 

shall evidence limits of insurability for general liability coverage in an amount of $800,000 

aggregate and $400,000 each occurrence.  The Grantee shall have the right to self-insure. These 

are the maximum limits of liability for which the Grantee’s Self-Insurance Program is 



 4 

responsible, as determined by Section 5-301 et seq. of the Courts and Judicial Proceedings 

Article of the Annotated Code of Maryland, also known as the “Local Government Tort Claims 

Act.” 

The Department and its agencies, officers, and employees shall be endorsed on the commercial 

general liability policies, including any excess policies (to the extent applicable), as an additional 

insured. Coverage will be primary and noncontributory with any other insurance and self-

insurance.  There will be no cancellation, material change, potential exhaustion of aggregate 

limits or non-renewal of insurance coverage(s) without thirty (30) days written notice to the 

Department.  Certificates of insurance shall be provided to the Department upon request.  All 

endorsements shall be provided as soon as practicable. Failure to provide insurance as required 

in this Agreement is a material breach of contract entitling the Department to terminate this 

Agreement. 

7. The Grant represents the maximum financial liability of the Department under 

this Agreement subject to, limited by and contingent upon the appropriation and availability of 

funds, as well as the types of liabilities, damage caps, and notice requirements stated in the 

Maryland Torts Claims Act (“MTCA”) currently found at the State Government Article, Section 

12-101 et seq. of the Maryland Annotated Code.   

8. The parties agree that the Grantee will utilize the Grant for the Project in 

conjunction with other funds it has obtained from funding sources other than the Maryland 

Bikeways Program to complete the Project. 

9. The Grantee shall maintain facilities and equipment funded through this Grant for 

the duration of their useful life, and in any event not less than five years.  At the request of the 

Department, the Grantee shall refund expenditures paid by the Department if Project facilities 

and equipment are not so maintained. 

10. The Grantee may use funds only for costs incurred in connection with the Project.  

Payment of the Grant by the Department shall be made on a reimbursable basis upon the 

Grantee’s submission of invoices for such payment, subject to the following conditions. 

All invoices for payment shall include: 

(a) actual expenditures incurred by the Grantee in connection with the Project; 

(b) a certification by the Grantee that all costs charged to the Project are in 

connection therewith and supported by properly executed records, 

vouchers, invoices or contracts evidencing the nature and propriety of the 

charges. 

Invoices/requests for reimbursement will be submitted not more frequently than once per 

month (30 days). Invoices/requests for reimbursement will be reviewed by MDOT to determine 

(a) that the indicated costs are allowable hereunder and (b) that the invoiced work contributes 

directly to the accomplishment of the Project.  Failure to meet these conditions will result in 

disallowed costs that will be deducted from the authorized appropriated amount.  Payment shall 

be made by the Department to the Grantee within thirty (30) days of the Department’s receipt 



 5 

and approval of the invoice and accompanying certifications. The final invoice may not be paid 

until documentation of the Matching Fund Contribution and the final report is submitted. No 

Project costs incurred prior to the execution of this Agreement will be reimbursed.   

11. The Grantee shall comply with all applicable Federal, State and local laws in 

expending Grant funds and in carrying out the Project, including compliance with the Americans 

with Disabilities Act of 1990, particularly as it relates to public meetings held in connection with 

the Project.  

12. The term of this Agreement shall commence upon the date first set forth above 

and shall terminate when all payments of the Grant have been made or on December 31, 2022 

whichever is sooner. All work on the Project that is reimbursable under this Grant must be 

completed and all invoices/requests for reimbursement must be submitted by the Grantee before 

the grant termination date. Any invoices/requests for reimbursement submitted after the grant 

termination date will be identified as a disallowed cost and not processed for payment by 

MDOT. At its discretion, the Department may elect to extend the term of the Grant by up to six 

months, upon written notice by MDOT.  

13. The Department reserves the right to suspend or terminate all or part of the 

financial assistance herein provided and to terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, if: 

(a) the Grantee breaches or fails to fulfill any of the terms of this Agreement; 

or 

(b) funds are not appropriated by the General Assembly of Maryland to fund 

this Grant.   

The Grantee acknowledges and agrees that funding under this Agreement is expressly 

dependent upon the availability to the Department of funds appropriated by the General 

Assembly and that, except as otherwise provided for herein, the Department shall not be liable 

for any breach of this Agreement due to the absence of an appropriation.  Termination of this 

Agreement will not invalidate obligations properly incurred by the Grantee prior to the date of 

termination if such obligations are unable to be canceled.  The acceptance of a remittance from 

the Department of any or all funds, or the closing out of the Department’s financial participation 

under this Agreement, shall not constitute a waiver of any claim that the Department may 

otherwise have against the Grantee arising out of this Agreement.  If, upon termination of this 

Agreement, it is determined by the Department that funds are due to the Department, the Grantee 

shall promptly remit such amount to the Department within forty-five (45) days following 

written notification to the Grantee from the Department.  The Grantee’s agreement to remit any 

excess Grant funds to the Department shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

In addition to the Department’s remedies under this Section, the Department may proceed 

to protect and enforce all rights available to it, by suit in equity, action in law or by any other 

appropriate proceedings, any or all of which may be exercised contemporaneously with each 

other and all of which rights and remedies shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

14. The Grantee shall maintain separate and complete accounting records that are 

consistent with generally accepted accounting procedures and accurately reflect all income and 



 6 

expenditures of Grant funds for the Project.  Grantee accounting records shall be maintained for 

a period of three (3) years after the termination of this Agreement.  The records of the Grantee 

must be in sufficient detail to determine the nature of the costs incurred and/or expenditures 

made by the Grantee for the Project. 

15. The Department reserves the right to perform interim and final audits of the Grant 

provided for under this Agreement.  Any final audit shall commence within three (3) years of the 

expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.  In connection with any audit undertaken 

hereunder, the Grantee shall provide access to all records with respect to the Project.  Following 

the completion of any audit undertaken hereunder, the Grantee shall refund to the Department 

within forty-five (45) days following notification by the Department any Grant payments that are 

found to be unsupported by acceptable accounting records or not expended in accordance with 

the terms of this Agreement.  The Grantee’s covenant to repay any excess Grant payments shall 

survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

16. This Agreement may be modified only by written instrument, executed by the 

Department and the Grantee, except for the Grant extension pursuant to paragraph 12. 

17. The Grantee shall, to the extent permitted by law, defend, indemnify, and hold 

harmless the Department, its officers, agents, and employees, from any and all claims, demands, 

suits, causes of action, liability, damages, losses, costs and expenses (including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees) of whatsoever nature, including, without limitation, those arising on account of 

any injury or death of persons or damage to property, caused by, arising out of, or resulting from 

any and all services and activities performed by the Grantee or its employees, agents, 

subcontractors, or consultants relating to the Project and this Agreement. 

 

18. It is understood and agreed that the sole obligation of the Department is the 

payment to the Grantee the sum of money specified in Section 2 of this Agreement. 

19. All payments hereunder by the Department to the Grantee are subject to the 

budgetary and appropriation requirements of Section 3-216(d)(2) of the Transportation Article of 

the Annotated Code of Maryland, (2015 Replacement Volume, as amended and supplemented). 

20. No right, benefit or advantage inuring to the Grantee under this Agreement may 

be assigned and no burden imposed on the Grantee hereunder may be delegated or assigned 

without the prior written approval of the Department. 

21. The parties hereby agree that this Agreement shall be construed in accordance 

with the law of the State of Maryland. 

22. As an inducement to the Department to make the Grant, the Grantee hereby 

certifies to the Department that: 

(a) any resolution, ordinance or other action which may be required by local 

law has been introduced and adopted, passed, enacted or taken as an 

official act of the Grantee’s governing body, authorizing the execution and 

delivery of this Agreement by the Grantee in such manner and form as to 



 7 

comply with all applicable laws to make this Agreement the valid and 

legally binding act and agreement of the Grantee; 

(b) no officer or employee of the Grantee, or its designees or agents, no 

consultants, no member of the Grantee’s governing body, and no other 

public official of the Grantee, who exercises any functions or 

responsibilities over the Project or the Grant shall have or obtain a 

personal or financial interest or benefit from any activity in connection 

with the Project or Grant or have an interest in any contract, subcontract or 

agreement with respect therewith; 

(c) the Grantee is not in arrears with respect to the payment of any moneys 

due and owing the State of Maryland, or any department or unit thereof, 

including, but not limited to, the payment of taxes and employee benefits, 

and that it shall not become so in arrears during the term of this 

Agreement. 

23. The Department and the Grantee certify that they prohibit, and covenant that they 

will continue to prohibit, discrimination on the basis of: 

(a) age, ancestry, color, creed, marital status, national origin, race or religious 

or political affiliation, belief or opinion, or sexual orientation; 

(b) sex or age, except when age or sex constitutes a bona fide occupational 

qualification; or 

(c) the physical or mental disability of a qualified individual with a disability.   

Upon the request of the other party, the Department and the Grantee will submit to the 

other party information relating to its operating policies and procedures with regard to age, 

ancestry, color, creed, marital status, mental or physical disability, national origin, race, religious 

or political affiliation, belief or opinion or sex or sexual orientation.  

24. The Department and the Grantee shall comply with the State’s policy concerning 

drug and alcohol free workplaces, as set forth in Executive Order 01.01.1989.18 and COMAR 

21.11.08, and must remain in compliance throughout the term of this Agreement. 

25. It is specifically agreed between the Department and the Grantee that it is not 

intended by any of the provisions of this Agreement to create in any public entity, or any 

member thereof, or in any private entity third party beneficiary status in connection with the 

performance of the obligations herein. 

26. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable 

by a court of competent jurisdiction: 

(a) such provision shall be fully severable; 



 8 

(b) this Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid 

or unenforceable provision had never comprised a part of this Agreement; 

and 

(c) the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 

effect and shall not be affected by the illegal, invalid or unenforceable 

provision or by its severance from this Agreement. 

27. This Agreement may be executed in several identical counterparts, each of which 

shall constitute an original and all of which shall constitute, collectively, one agreement. 

28. This Agreement shall inure to and be binding upon the parties hereto, their agents, 

successors and, to the extent an assignment has been approved pursuant to Section 20 of this 

Agreement, their assigns. 

29. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts; all such counterparts will be 

deemed one agreement. This agreement may be executed by facsimile or electronic (.pdf) 

signature and a facsimile or electronic (.pdf) signature will constitute an original for all purposes 

without delivery of an original signature being thereafter required. 

30. Each notice, invoice, demand, request, consent, approval, disapproval, 

designation or other communications between the parties, to the extent required to be in writing 

shall be made by United States Postal Mail to the following:   

In the case of MDOT: 

Heather Murphy, Director 

Office of Planning and Capital 

Programming 

7201 Corporate Center Drive 

Hanover, MD 21076 

 

In the case of the Grantee: 

William White 

Transportation Projects Specialist 

City of Salisbury 

125 N Division St. 

Salisbury, MD 21801

 

 

 

 

The next page is the signature page. 



 9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

 

MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 

WITNESS:      

 

 

      By: 

Nate Evans Date  R. Earl Lewis, Jr.  Date 

Bikeways Program Manager       Deputy Secretary    

      

 

FUNDS AVAILABLE:   APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 

LEGAL SUFFICIENCY: 

 

 

       

Jaclyn Hartman, Chief Financial Officer     Brenden Lee Hodge, Assistant Attorney General 

Office of Finance        Maryland Department of Transportation 

  

 

 

CITY OF SALISBURY, MARYLAND 

WITNESS 

 

________________________________ By: _______________________________ 

        Julia Glanz   Date 

        City Administrator & Acting Mayor 

 

 



 

 

    

 

 

To:                Julia Glanz 

From:           Ben Baker, Deputy Director DFO, Services 

Subject:       Ordinance- Budget Amendment 

Date:            October 8, 2020 

 

Department of Field Operations (DFO) Zoo, Vehicle # ZOO-2, a 2004 GMC small dump truck 
was involved in an accident on sight and was repaired by a local vendor.  
 
DFO request that the insurance adjustment from the above vehicle totaling $848.15 be 
transferred to the DFO Zoo Vehicle Account, 40000-534308 to be used towards the repairs 
within the FY21 budget year.     

 

Unless you or the Mayor has further questions, please forward this Ordinance to the City 
Council. 
 



 

 

ORDINANCE No. 2630 
 

AN ORDINACE OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY APPROVING A BUDGET ADMENDMENT OF 
THE FY21 GENERAL FUND BUDGET TO APPROPRIATE INSURANCE PROCEEDS RECEIVED IN 
FY21 AS PART OF THE PAYMENT FOR VEHICLE REPAIR. 

  
 WHEREAS, City of Salisbury Zoo Vehicle ZOO-2, 2004 GMC Small Dump Truck was involved in an 
accident on site and was repaired by a local vendor; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Department of Field Operations (DFO) is requesting that the insurance proceeds of 
$848.15 be placed in the Zoo Vehicle Account, 40000 534308; and     
 

WHEREAS, the Zoo will utilize the funds from the insurance proceeds to pay for the repair within the 
FY21 Budget Year; and   

 
WHEREAS, appropriations necessary to execute the purpose of these funds must be made upon the 

recommendation of the Mayor and the approval of four-fifths of the Council of the City of Salisbury. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SALISBURY, 
MARYLAND that the City’s Fiscal Year 2021 General fund Budget is hereby, amended as follows: 
   

1) Increase Insurance Proceeds (01000-456935) by $848.15 
2) Increase the Salisbury Zoo- Vehicle Account (40000-534308) by $848.15 

 
BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect from and after the date of its final passage. 
 
 THIS ORDINANCE was introduced, read at a meeting of the Council of the City of Salisbury held on 
this 9th day of November, 2020 and thereafter, a statement of the substance of the Ordinance having been 
published as required by law, was finally passed by the council on the ____ day of _________, 2020. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ __________________________________ 
Kimberly R. Nichols, City Clerk John R. Heath, President 

Salisbury City Council 
 
 
APPROVED BY ME THIS ____ day of _______, 2020. 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Julia Glanz, City Administrator, for and at the direction of 
Jacob R. Day, Mayor 


	11-9-20 Agenda
	10-19-20-Work Session Minutes
	10-26-20-Council Meeting Minutes
	Memo- B Frederick 
	Frederick Letter 
	Frederick Resume 
	Res 3072 Frederick 
	Memo- A Pope 
	Pope request
	Pope Resume 
	Res 3073 Pope 
	Memo- D Sessa 
	Sessa request
	Sessa Resume
	Res 3074 Sessa 
	Memo- HRAC Amend Bylaws 
	Res 3075 HRAC Amend Bylaws 10.19.2020 sbt
	Hall Dr Annexation
	Ord 2626- WiCHD CRF Grant - Accept.-Approp. Ordinance - PPE Washer_Dryer - 
	Ord 2627- Budget Amendment - Safe Stations 
	Ord 2628- SWIFT Grant 21009 - Accept.-Approp. Funding -
	Memo- FY21 Bikeways Funds 
	Ord 2629- FY 21 Bikeways Grant Agreements 
	Salisbury Rail Trail Phase 1 Grant Agreement 
	Salisbury West College Avenue Grant Agreement
	Memo- Zoo Budget Amendment 
	Ord 2630- Budget Admendment Zoo
	11.09.20 Council Packet - Dept. of Procurement (1).pdf
	Vehicles Equip Surplus 10.27.20.pdf
	Vehicles & Large Equip
	Sm Equip





